
Children, Young People & Education 
Committee
Date: Tuesday, 20 October 2020
Time: 6.00 p.m.

Venue: Virtual

Contact Officer:   Patrick Sebastian
Tel:
e-mail: patricksebastian@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

2. APOLOGIES 

3. MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/ or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest. 

4. PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS 

4.1 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

Notice of questions to be given in writing or by email, by 12 
noon Thursday, 15 October,2020 to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer and to be dealt with in accordance with Standing Order 
10.

4.2 STATEMENTS AND PETITIONS

Representations and petitions to be dealt with in accordance 
with Standing Order 11.

4.3 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS

Public Document Pack



Questions by Members to be dealt with in accordance with 
Standing Orders 12.3 to 12.8

SECTION A - KEY AND OTHER DECISIONS

5. EARLY HELP MODEL (Pages 1 - 52)

6. DOMESTIC ABUSE STRATEGY (Pages 53 - 84)

SECTION B - BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

7. 2021/22 BUDGET PROCESS (Pages 85 - 94)

8. BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING (Pages 95 - 100)

SECTION C- WORK PROGRAMME/OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

9. CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 101 - 108)



CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE & EDUCATION COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 20 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: EARLY HELP MODEL
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR FOR CHILDREN, FAMILIES AND 

EDUCATION

REPORT SUMMARY

This report provides the Children, Young People and Education Committee with an 
overview of the developing early help model. It details insight work undertaken in the first 
year of the Community Matters initiative, describes the emerging model and its key 
components, relationship to the wider children’s services system and outlines the year two 
work plan and pilot activity.  

The early help model seeks to contribute to the following priorities of Wirral Council’s Plan 
2025:

- Working for brighter futures for our children, young people and their families by 
breaking the cycle of poor outcomes and raising the aspirations of every child in 
Wirral.

- Working for safe and pleasant communities where our residents feel safe, and 
where they want to live and raise their families. 

This matter affects residents across the borough.

This report does not relate to a key decision. 

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Children, Young People and Education Committee is requested to:

1. Note the progress made since January 2019, through the Community Matters initiative, 
to develop an innovative new early help model. 

2. Support the approach and ongoing developmental work and pilot activity. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The Community Matters initiative is a key component of the medium-term strategy 
to reduce demand for statutory services whilst improving outcomes and the daily-
lived experience of children, young people and families in Wirral. Providing a strong 
early help offer is an invest to save approach that builds capacity and resilience 
within families and communities. 

1.2 Community Matters launched in January 2019, with a commitment to deliver a new 
early help model in April 2021. Following 18 months of meaningful activity, 
momentum is gathering, there is commitment from external partners both in kind 
and funding to further develop the approach, therefore support of senior leaders for 
this agenda is important. 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Not to support the approach and ongoing developmental work would limit the 
opportunity to maximise the resource within families and communities for early help 
capacity building and would negatively impact on co-ordination of community-based 
support. Not to support an early help model would lead to an increase in demand 
for statutory services and increase in costs for wider public services. 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 In June 2018, the Children’s Services directorate was restructured, establishing an 
Early Help & Prevention Service led by an Assistant Director. Two priorities were 
agreed for Early Help & Prevention:

Priority 1. To deliver high quality, cost effective prevention services which reduce 
demand for children’s social care and stop children becoming looked after

Priority 2. Optimise the total resource in the system for early help

3.2 To deliver priority 1 a full-scale service review was undertaken, investing an 
additional £650k into the Local Authority’s Early Help & Prevention Services, which 
included Early Years and Children’s Centres, the Integrated Front Door, Targeted 
Family Support, Family Group Conferencing, Edge of Care Support for infants and 
adolescents, Contextual Safeguarding Service and the Community Matters early 
help provision.

3.3 On 17 March 2020, a report was presented to the Children and Families Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee detailing the progress and successes achieved for priority 
1. The report noted a reduction in demand for Children’s Social Care, with contacts 
in 2019-20 reducing to 11,766 from 14,900 the previous year, and the rate of Child 
in Need per 10,000 reducing to 335.9 in 19-20 from 398.8 the previous year. The 
report also noted positive feedback on preventative services from the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), and Ofsted inspection 
which stated, “early help is making a positive difference to children.”

Page 2



3.4 This report focuses on the progress made for priority 2, optimising the total 
resource in the system for early help.

3.5 The children’s system can be described in a number of ways, the most common 
being through a threshold of need model. Whilst the threshold model is helpful to 
local authority services in describing level of need and organising its service 
provision, it is less sophisticated in describing how families view and seek help. The 
following diagram describes the system from the child and family’s perspective:

3.6 Overlaying Children’s Services onto this model would show Children’s Social Care 
in the outer ring, Intervention Network, and the Early Help & Prevention Service in 
the Support Service Network. The two inner rings, Community Network and Child 
and Family Network, are the areas in which we seek to influence through the 
design and development of a new early help model and approach. It is within these 
two inner spheres that we aim to optimise the resource and capacity to meet need 
as early as possible.

3.7 There are three basic assumptions in this model which are worth noting. Firstly, the 
closer the ring to the individual the more comfortable they feel in asking for and 
accepting help, and secondly, the closer the ring to the individual the lesser the cost 
to public services. The third assumption, which is critical to reducing demand, is 
that the stronger we make each of the inner rings, the less need there is for the 
outer rings.

3.8 In January 2019 the Community Matters initiative was launched which has focused 
on the workings and interdependencies of all four rings and how to reimagining 
early help. Children’s Services have collaborated with Capacity: The Public 
Services Lab, who were commissioned to work with key stakeholders across Wirral 
to develop an innovative and asset-based early help model which can be 
implemented by 01 April 2021. The progress to date and emerging model will be 
described in this report.

3.9 Progress and achievement in Year 1
Children’s Services and Capacity: The Public Services Lab agreed a work plan for 
Year 1 which focused on four areas: engagement; infrastructure; readiness; and 

Page 3



service design (Appendix 1- Year 1 Discovery Work Plan). Achievement against the 
goals is as follows:

3.9.1 Engagement

Goal: Shared understanding of what stakeholders need and want from an early 
help model

Achieved: Through workshops, focus groups, structured and semi-structured 
interviews with professionals and volunteers from across agencies and 
engagement with approximately 450 Wirral families, a findings report, Why 
Community Matters, was published (Appendix 2- Why Community Matters report). 
A webinar to launch the report was hosted on 09 June 2020, opened by Cllr Tom 
Usher, Cabinet Member for Children, Families & Education. The webinar was 
followed by two virtual workshops, Continuing the Conversation, which were 
attended by over 100 professionals and volunteers from across Wirral. 

The key elements for an early help model, agreed by all stakeholders were:

3.9.2 Infrastructure

Goal: Co-designed proposal that outlines how Wirral MBC systems and processes 
will support people as early and effectively as possible

Achieved: Extensive research has been completed on national and international 
models for infrastructure, identifying components for digital platforms and effective 
communications. A work plan for year 2 is underway featuring activity to rebrand 
and create a ‘new language’ for early help, communications strategy, kitemarking to 
create ‘one system’ and test alternative procurement approaches. (Full details in 
Appendix 3- Next Steps summary). 

3.9.3 Readiness

Goal: Motivated, robust network of partners and providers ready to pilot some new 
approaches.  

Page 4



Achieved: The number of partners delivering through the Community Matters 
initiative has doubled in 12 months. For the most recent Community Matters 
tendering exercise 20 local VCSE organisations applied to join the initiative. This 
demonstrates a growing network of partners and providers ready to deliver new 
approaches. In addition, 6 local VCSE organisations benefitted from leadership 
development from Capacity: The Public Service Lab and Clore Social Leadership 
Programme.

Goal: Shifts in Wirral MBC commissioning processes ensure VCSEs can sit at the 
heart of service delivery

Achieved: Working closely with Community Matters delivery partners to learn from 
their experience in year 1, we have made variations to existing contracts to reduce 
bureaucracy and give providers greater ability to maximise their organisation’s 
strengths in year 2. This has involved delivery partners collaborating to develop and 
implement a new outcomes framework, based on family experience and family 
reporting rather than ‘head counting’. In addition, efforts to shift commissioning 
processes were positively demonstrated in the recent Family Coaches pilot, which 
saw an end-to-end process from funding being awarded from the National Lottery 
to Family Coaches starting their role, taking only 6 weeks. 

3.9.4 Service Design

Goal: Early Help prototypes, co-designed with stakeholders and partners, ready for 
piloting in Year 2

Achieved: A number of pilots are underway, including the Childhood Offer in Cradle 
to Career, the Family Coaches pilot, new outcomes framework, testing of self-
directed services and plans for testing rapid commissioning and self-reflection tools 
in place.

3.10 The Emerging Model

The most important piece of learning from Year 1 has been that stakeholders 
perceive early help as ‘a service’, something that is ‘accessed’ and ‘delivered to’ 
children and families, rather than something that we can all do. Stakeholders 
perceive early help as sitting in the third ring, Support Services Network. It is the 
intention of the new model to push early help into the inner rings of Child and 
Family Network and Community Network, through a model based on influencing 
behaviour change. 

3.11 The emerging model aims to help families to help themselves, and is grounded in 
the principles defined by Hilary Cottam in ‘Radical Help: How We Can Remake the 
Relationships Between Us and Revolutionise the Welfare State’, (Virago Press, 
London, 2018):

20th Century Welfare 21st Century Radical Help
Fix the problem Grow the good life
Manage need Develop capability
Transaction culture Above all relationships

Page 5



Audit money Connect multiple forms of resource
Contain risk Create possibility
Closed/targeted Open: take care of everyone

3.12 As a starting position, the new model considers how we would want people to 
behave when they have a problem to resolve.

3.12.1 Step 1: The first step we take in working out a problem is to apply our existing 
learning and experience, to ask ourselves “What do I know about this?”, “Have I 
experienced this before? What did I do then, and how did that work out for me?” 
This relies on previous learning and previous experiences. 

3.12.2 Step 2: The next step to take is to look for new information- we ‘google it’. We use 
the internet, books, magazines, online forums, even instruction manuals to increase 
our knowledge and work out how to solve the problem. 

3.12.3 Step 3: Getting advice from someone who we think will have knowledge and 
experience, someone we trust and is available to us, is the next step. They may 
share experience, provide new resources or introduce us to a new activity. 

3.12.4 Step 4: Taking part in an activity, whether it’s a learning opportunity, programme or 
support service requires a greater commitment on behalf of the individual, and 
therefore is dependent on a belief that the activity will help. That belief is 
strengthened when it comes via a recommendation from someone who has 
benefitted from it. 

3.12.5 Step 5: Sharing experience and learning is beneficial to the person for cementing 
their experience, helps others, and creates peer or community support structures 
that lead to more sustainable outcomes. 

3.13 An important advantage of this approach is that it gives control and choice to the 
individual, which, as we know from insight work, is important. It is unsurprising that 
feedback confirms people do not want to ‘be referred’, ‘be assessed’, ‘be measured 
against criteria’ or added to a waiting list. Another advantage is that help can begin 
immediately. 

3.14 It is our intention that the emerging model will contain the elements required to 
enable this approach. For each step, we have identified key elements to test and 
put into place. Where there are financial implications, a note is added detailing 
where funding has been sourced from to support activity. 

3.14.1 Step 1: This step relies on previous learning and experience. We can influence 
learning in two key areas and, although we cannot influence previous experience, 
we can provide a tool for people to reflect on previous experience.

Page 6



 Curriculum for Life (developed through the Youth Offer) which prepares young 
people for adulthood. The Curriculum for Life will blend face-to-face activities, 
delivered through schools and youth provision, with an online resource bank 
accessible at any time

 Early Parenting Programmes (developed through the 1001 Critical Days Offer) 
which enhances parents’ learning through pregnancy to age 2. The 1001 
Critical Days Offer will blend face-to-face activities, delivered across Early 
Childhood Services, with an online resource bank accessible at any time

 A self-reflection tool to assess the problem, review previous learning and 
experiences, and consider current options. This tool will be available online so 
that it is accessible at any time (developing with funding from the Troubled 
Families Service Transformation Grant)

3.14.2 Step 2: This step relies on people being able to find useful information easily, such 
as the resources referred to above and those that community organisations have to 
offer. 

 Developing a beta-version early help website, in collaboration with community 
partners, that shares great resources and information relating to specific family 
needs, experiences, and times of change (developing with funding from the 
Troubled Families Service Transformation Grant)

 An early help app which offers knowledge, tools and connection to peer group 
(developing with funding from the Troubled Families Service Transformation 
Grant)

 Linking the Youth Offer website and Youth Matters app to the beta-version 
early help website (developing through the Youth Offer website funding)

3.14.3 Step 3: This is a step in which the breadth of choice available to people needs to be 
fully optimised. In a non-professional context, friends, neighbours, community 
leaders, peer support and peer forums have a very important role and bring the 
inner rings of the model, Family and Friends Network and Community Network to 
life. Within the professional context, we know from the insight work that people 
have great trust in their GPs, schools and local voluntary organisations, readily 
turning to them for advice. 

 A kitemarking system for organisations to be part of the one-system approach 
to early help, using the behaviour model and coaching approach (developing 
with funding from the Troubled Families Service Transformation Grant)

 A referral-free online and telephone coaching delivered by voluntary 
organisations to encourage people to think through their challenges and come 
up with their own solutions (developing through National Lottery funding)

 Learning from the impact of Community Champions and the Cradle to Career 
programme (joint funding approach between Wirral Council, the Steve Morgan 
Foundation, Shine Trust, and Right to Succeed)

Page 7



 A digital/paper tool that a family owns and shares with others to articulate their 
needs with having to re-tell their story (developing with funding from the 
Troubled Families Service Transformation Grant)

3.14.4 Step 4: Wirral benefits from an incredibly active voluntary, community and faith 
sector. To maximise opportunities for families, it is our intention to improve 
awareness of the many activities available in Wirral that support families to thrive, 
whilst testing new solutions to key gaps outlined by residents. 

 Developing a beta-version early help website, linked to Live Well, Info Bank, 
Local Offer, Youth Matters, My Child Can and other relevant sites to provide 
information on activities (developing with funding from the Troubled Families 
Service Transformation Grant)

 Seed more peer-based support groups (developing with funding from the 
Violence Reduction Unit) 

 Co-ordinate the activity of Wirral Youth Collective, as part of the Youth Offer 

 Move appropriate programmes online (those which transferred online during 
Covid-19 lockdown and where testing demonstrates this is effective)

 Development of a My Community Matters funding approach which enables 
commissioning of activity to meet needs in local areas, bringing people, 
providers, funders and philanthropists together, with structures and permissions 
to act (piloting through Tudor Trust funding)  

 Community Matters provision is self-directed only, no referrals

3.14.5 Step 5: This step requires meaningful sharing of power and decision making so that 
children and families can play a fundamental role in the design, commissioning and 
delivery of local services.

 A community training programme that shares essential coaching and 
empowerment practices with people and organisations that support others in 
their community (developing through National Lottery funding)

 Take up and impact of the My Community Matters small grants pot, offering 
grass-roots community groups access to funding and set-up support to launch 
new peer-based groups and activities that support local families to thrive 
(piloting through Tudor Trust funding)

3.15 The emerging model in relation to Children’s Services
In the emerging model, which seeks to optimise and mobilise resource within the 
Child and Family Network and Community Network, the Local Authority needs to 
provide backbone support. This will be achieved to some extent by the 
development of infrastructure as described above in section 3.14, but will also rely 
on the relationship between some parts of the Local Authority Children’s Services 
and the community, particularly the Children’s Centres, Early Childhood Services 

Page 8



and the Youth Offer. Those parts of the Children’s Services directorate will be 
branded in line with the Community Network and early help offer. 

3.16 It is intended that the Children’s Centres will be re-visioned as Family Wellbeing 
Centres, providing a central point for the people, Children’s Services and 
community organisations to merge. The Early Childhood Service will continue to 
focus on under-5s, but the buildings will provide opportunity for collaborative 
delivery across ‘people services’ for all parts of the directorate and extending to 
other Council departments as appropriate. Seacombe Children’s Centre, which 
provides a birthing suite, access to health services, a social supermarket, 
community café, base for voluntary organisations, a shared garden, and more 
recently, access to library facilities, is a good blueprint to follow.

3.17 The Children’s Centres currently benefit from Advisory Groups which have 
community, partner and parent representation. These Advisory Boards have access 
to a small amount of funding for local projects. This approach would be extended to 
create a Community Matters fund in each locality which is used to provide rapid 
response to meet need at a local level, and to fund grass roots community groups 
to lead on events and activities in their area. Currently the Community Matters 
funding is centralised and funds support for 900 families per year.

3.18 It is important to note the case-holding parts of Early Help & Prevention Services 
which will remain in the Support Services Network: Targeted Family Support, Edge 
of Care for adolescents and infants, Family Group Conferencing, Contextual 
Safeguarding Service, and Youth Justice Service. These services will continue to 
require referral to ensure that the interface between them and Children’s Social 
Care is strong, providing robust arrangements for step-down and preventing need 
for statutory intervention and children becoming looked after.

3.19 Challenges presented by the emerging model
There are two very significant challenges to consider when implementing this self-
help model. The first being that the model relies upon the individual wanting to 
make a change. Every day there are contacts to the Integrated Front Door, which 
when assessed as not being in need of intervention from Children’s Social Care are 
directed to early help services, which are declined by the parent, family, child or 
young person. 

3.20 As part of the Family Coaching pilot, funded by the National Lottery, we will test out 
‘Choice Champions’. The Choice Champion will engage with families who were 
referred to Children’s Services but did not meet the threshold, to discuss why they 
were referred, find out from the family what they are struggling with, coach them 
through the behaviour model, and promote the self-reflection tool and online 
resources, giving choice and control back to the individual and family.

3.21 The model aims to influence how people behave when they are faced with a 
problem or need help. We are conscious that more challenging may be influencing 
how professionals and organisations behave when people need help. Currently 
there is a culture of ‘fixing’, ‘signposting’ and ‘referring on’ rather than listening and 
helping people to help themselves. This is a challenge which will require time, 
workforce development and system-leadership from the Partnership for Children 

Page 9



and Families. Implementing the model will provide a solid platform to build on, and 
it is anticipated it will take 3-5 years for this to be fully embedded.

3.22 Continuous Learning and Growth of Community Matters 
A report on learning and impact will be reported to the Children, Families and 
Education Committee on 11 March 2021. This will include evidence from:
 Evaluation of the collective impact tool
 One-to-one interviews with parents, children, young people and partners
 Satisfaction surveys
 Analysis of Children’s Services data
 National Lottery programme evaluation
 Report of Capacity: The Public Services Lab Impact Team 

Learning will continue to shape development of the model. 

3.23 Working with Capacity: The Public Services Lab, we are developing a prospectus to 
present to government bodies interested in innovation, funders, collaborators and 
philanthropists, extending the invitation to be part of this innovative approach to 
delivering early help to children and families in 2021 and future years.

3.24 The aspects of this approach which will be of most interest to external bodies, and 
thereby increase the likelihood of funding contribution will be:

 No referrals as the model is self-directed
 No thresholds as available to anyone who faces a problem
 No waiting lists as people can start their self-reflection/plan immediately
 Co-produced with people and developed in response to their experiences an
 Aligned with Asset Based Community Development and Community Wealth 

Building Strategies 
 Suitable to extend to adults without children- early help for adults
 Potential to reduce demand for statutory services 
 Potential to reduce waiting lists as people source alternative help and 

professionals cease making automatic referrals through lack of other options

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. The existing Community 
Matters initiative is funded through the Early Help & Prevention budget. This budget 
has been increased by securing additional funding from the National Lottery 
(£100k), the Tudor Trust (£35k), Violence Reduction Unit (£38k), and utilising 
£203k from the Troubled Families Service Transformation Grant. 

4.2 The report outlines a number of pilots, which if to become business as usual, would 
be funded by altering existing resource, or through longer-term external funding 
which is being sought from external bodies. 

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. Where the report details 
new approaches to procurement and commissioning, this has been compliant with 
the requirements of Council Procurement processes. 

Page 10



6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There is a requirement for the development of digital platforms to deliver the new 
model. These are being developed in partnership with the appropriate Council 
services. 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 Establishing the new model within the agreed timescale and allocated funding 
requires effective collaboration between Wirral Council and Capacity: The Public 
Services Lab. A robust contract monitoring arrangement is in place, complemented 
by fortnightly meetings between lead delivery officers and regular communication 
between Directors. 

7.2 It is necessary to acknowledge the current financial pressures facing the Council 
and its partners as a risk. Any future funding discussion must consider cost-benefit 
analysis and the need for invest to save approaches.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 As detailed in section 3.9, through workshops, focus groups, structured and semi-
structured interviews with professionals and volunteers from across agencies and 
engagement with approximately 450 Wirral families, a findings report, Why 
Community Matters, was published (Appendix 2- Why Community Matters report). 
The webinar was followed by two virtual workshops, Continuing the Conversation, 
which were attended by over 100 professionals and volunteers from across Wirral.

8.2 An online forum has been established to continue engagement with children, 
parents and families. This will continue throughout the duration of the model 
development, leading to the establishment of a Families Forum, which will be a 
sub-group of the Partnership for Children and Families. 

8.3 Parents were involved in the selection panels for commissioning the Family 
Coaches pilot, which took place in August 2020. 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment has been completed for the early help model.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 It is anticipated that the new early help model will contribute to reduced greenhouse 
gases and emissions of CO2. By increasing local and virtual access to services 
there will be less requirement for staff and service users to travel. Online tools and 
resources will reduce the use of paper. Commissioning arrangements for 
Community Matters providers require that they operate services that contribute 
positively to environment and climate issues. 

Page 11



REPORT AUTHOR: Elizabeth Hartley
Assistant Director: Early Help & Prevention 
telephone: (0151) 666 4238
email:   elizabethhartley@wirral.gov.uk 

APPENDICES

Appendix 1- Year 1 Discovery Work Plan
Appendix 2- Why Community Matters report
Appendix 3- Next Steps summary
Appendix 4- Elements of the Early Help Model 

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Inspection of Children’s Social Care Services Report, Ofsted, published 29th July 2019

Hilary Cottam (2018) Radical Help: How We Can Remake the Relationships Between Us 
and Revolutionise the Welfare State, (Virago Press, London)

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Children and Families Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Children and Families Overview & Scrutiny Committee

24 February 2019

17 March 2020

Page 12

mailto:elizabethhartley@wirral.gov.uk


COMMUNITY MATTERS  
PROJECT ON A PAGE: 2019-20

E
N

G
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

Map out stakeholders 
and services across 
Wirral and understand 
service models, 
highlighting key 
elements of current 
approach   

Begin interviews & 
school focus groups with 
Children, Young People, 
Parents and Carers  

Gather insights from 
schools and nurseries  

Interview providers and 
local VCSEs 

Children, Young People, 
Parents and Carers 
Focus Groups and 1-2-1 
Interviews 

Gather insights from 
wider services, providers 
and partners

Explore and analyse 
feedback 

Identify key areas of 
success, challenge and 
opportunity 

Create and share 
Insights Report 

Deliver workshops 
with stakeholders and 
partners to consider 
what the insights tell us, 
informing service design 

Shared understanding 
of what stakeholders 

need and want from an 
early help model 

Explore software 
options 

Explore how other LAs 
approach IT and data 
management  

Co-design proposal for 
infrastructure adapta-
tions required for new 
model 

Co-designed proposal 
that outlines how 

Wirral MBC systems 
and processes will 
support people as 

early and effectively as 
possible 

Gather insights into how 
services are currently 
managing and utilising 
data 

IN
FR

A
ST

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

Launch VCSE Support 
Programme: 3 Wirral 
orgs signed up 

Deliver VCSE Business 
Support Programmes 

Clore Social Leadership 
Pilot Programme for 2/3 
Wirral VCSE leaders 

Pipeline of Early 
Help commissioning 
opportunities identified  

Philanthropic funders 
consulted: how can they 
support the emerging 
model? 

3 additional VCSEs 
signed up to support 
programme 

Insights re. Leadership 
in VCSE sector shared 
widely 

Motivated, robust 
network of partners 
and providers ready 
to pilot some new 

approaches.  

Shifts in Wirral 
MBC commissioning 

processes ensure 
VCSEs can sit at 

the heart of service 
delivery 

Identify pipeline of 
philanthropic funders 
who could support 
Collective Funding 
model for new approach 

Work with Wirral 
MBC to understand 
current commissioning 
processes 

R
E

A
D

IN
E

SS
 

Explore effective 
practice in other 
localities: visits, 
shadowing and in-depth 
interviews 

Short Report to capture 
alternative models 

Impact and Culture 
Workshop to develop 
shared vision, aims and 
language for Early Help 

Prototype service 
shapes designed 

Consultation with 
stakeholders for 
feedback and 
refinement 

Early Help Prototypes, 
co-designed with 
stakeholders and 

partners, ready for 
piloting in Year 2 

Explore effective 
practice in other 
localities: desk based 
research 

SE
R

V
IC

E
 D

E
SI

G
N

 

APR - JUN JUL - SEP OCT - DEC JAN - MAR
END GOAL  

MARCH 2020 

Capacity and Wirral MBC are working with young people, families and organisations across Wirral to co-design 
a new model of Early Help. The first year of this project is outlined below and if you’d like to be involved at any 
stage, we’d love to hear from you! Come and join the hundreds of stakeholders working with us from across the 
borough to shape an early help service that supports children and families to flourish.  
 
Contact natalie.mansfield@capacitylab.co.uk for more information.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



WHY
COMMUNITY 
MATTERS

Page 15



02 03

CONTENTS WHY COMMUNITY 
MATTERS
When you face challenges as a family, you can feel 
like you are missing out on many of the enjoyable 
experiences that are part of being a parent. I want 
my children to have amazing memories of growing 
up, and yet there have been times in my life when 
I’ve needed help and support but didn’t know 
where best to look for fear of being judged. The 
definition of Early Help in this report is incredibly 
helpful, because many people don’t know that it 
is primarily about support and not just a potential 
pathway to social services.

As a parent, sometimes you think you’re the 
only person who is going through a particular 
challenge, so having networks and people who 
are going through similar experiences is just so 
valuable. Local communities, face to face or online; 
indeed, any kind of supportive relationship all 
play a massive role in equipping families with the 
necessary skills to keep going when life is tough. 
My three children are each so different in terms of 
their individual strengths, and the challenges which 
they face, but what they all have in common is a 
network of people around them who are willing 
to love and support them, whether it be teachers, 
neighbours or their peers. It really does take a 
village to raise a child!

Communities aren’t just the physical environment 
where you live. They are more about the people 
around you who make you feel like you belong, 
who ground you and with whom you share a 
common understanding and experience of daily 
life. The connection I have with my own local 
community is my greatest source of strength when 
life is challenging. I am surrounded by love and 
support from people of all ages and backgrounds. 
Although we live some distance from our family, 
our local community is our family in the widest 
sense; full of joy, shared experience and love. This 
is why community matters to me. 

There is so much good work going on already 
across the Wirral and my hope is that this report 
will raise the profile of existing support and ensure 
that the right help is readily available for individual 
families. I want to see an Early Help system which 
can bring people together before they reach crisis 
point. It can take so much courage to attend a 
support group, so even an opportunity to text 
someone who has been through a similar situation 
would be a huge help for some families.

I want to see a focus on our shared strengths as 
families and communities, building one another up 
and supporting one another through challenging 
times. Together we are stronger!

Lucy
Local Parent

Why Community 
Matters 

Executive summary

Early Help and 
Community 
Matters in Wirral

What Early Help 
can do

Methodology

What communities 
told us

The Wirral  
wide picture

What great support 
currently looks like

Current  
perceived gaps

The picture of early 
help at a local level

Community deep 
dive: learning from 
LSOAs

Conclusions

So, what next? 

Acknowledgements

About the Authors

03 20

32

23

52

54

56

56

04

06

08

10

12

12

18

P
age 16



04 05

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In 2019, over 450 children, young people, parents, 
carers, guardians and professionals told us what a 
more effective and sustainable Early Help model 
should be like. Wirral residents were unanimous 
in their feedback: they don’t want traditional 
“services”. Children and families shared hundreds 
of examples of wonderful support that they’d 
received in Wirral; when they spoke, they rarely 
described programmes or pathways, they 
described people.

From teachers and GPs to staff and volunteers in 
third sector organisations or next-door neighbours, 
human beings are creating lifesaving networks 
across the borough, and families want more of 
this. They ask, “could volunteer and other peer-
based experiences that can give me more time and 
organic support that changes as I change, play a 
bigger role?”

Families spoke candidly about the barriers that 
prevented them from accessing help, or seeking 
additional help, in the past.

Fear and Shame
Families described the shame and embarrassment 
that came with “needing Early Help” and 
instances where support felt to be highlighting 
failures rather than building on strengths.

Services at Breaking Point
Despite the best intentions of many services, 
residents told us that professionals are often 
pulled towards need and reacting to crisis, 
not preventing problems before they escalate. 
Many families wanted support but couldn’t get 
it because their issues weren’t “bad enough” and 
services can rush to address surface issues 
rather than listening, reflecting and  
understanding underlying problems.

Wrong Time, Wrong Place
Many families we spoke to want Early Help support 
that is closer to home, preventing the need for
costly travel and transport.

Communicating Too Late,  
or Not at All 
Families emphasised how important it is that 
services are well promoted and well connected 
so that they do not have to keep repeating their 
story to different organisations or finding support 
opportunities when its already too late.

Over the next 12 months, Capacity will work with 
partners across the community to:

1. Co-design the new model with communities, 
funders and the Local Authority

2. Test what works before rolling out larger  
scale pilots

3. Develop a collective funding model that 
increases the investment available to Early Help 
and powers a more collaborative, responsive 
way of working across communities

4. Explore how technology can maximise the 
impact of Early Help 

We recognise that Wirral residents are asking 
for a radical departure from the current Early 
Help service. This is not a straightforward shift. 
Innovation on this scale will rely on funders, 
commissioners, providers and communities 
working together differently to bring this vision 
to life.

Mental Health
Children and families across Wirral identified 
a wide range of unmet mental health needs, 
from anxiety and low mood to severe mental 
illness that they felt current services didn’t 
have capacity to support.

Social Isolation
Many families described times where a lack 
of meaningful connection to others meant 
their problems had quickly escalated or 
opportunities for more informal support  
were missed.

Managing Change
Adults and children described personal 
experiences where additional support  
during times of significant change could 
have helped address problems before  
they escalated.

Supporting Children with 
Additional Needs 
Many of the families we spoke to  
raising children with additional needs  
described the need for more inclusive,  
whole-family experiences.

From primary school age children to grandparents, 
people across the life course need more 
accessible, low-cost mental health support, from 
cultural activities and peer-based wellbeing groups 
to respite and therapeutic care.

Create the conditions which help build meaningful 
relationships between people and create 
experiences that whole families can take part in. 

From becoming a new parent, starting a new 
school or coping with the loss of a loved one, many 
families want extra help when life suddenly 
changes; clearer information, peer-support groups 
and trusted people who can offer both practical 
and emotional support.

Offer opportunities for families to have fun 
together, to get support from others in a similar 
life-situations and to gather knowledge and 
information, particularly before a formal 
diagnosis has been made by professionals.

The future of Early Help: what do 
Wirral communities want?

Why traditional services 
aren’t the answer

Challenge What needs to be done

Adults told us: 

“Take on board the reality of my 
situation without being over-whelmed 
or referring me on.”

“Don’t give me time-restrictions, tick 
boxes or waiting lists.”

“Help our parents look after themselves, so 
that they can look after us.”

“Give us second chances and room to  
make mistakes.”

“We need places to come together, to meet 
new people and learn new skills.”

Children and young  
people told us:

P
age 17



06 07

EARLY HELP AND 
COMMUNITY MATTERS 
IN WIRRAL 

Early Help means taking action to support a child, 
young person or family as soon they encounter 
a challenge that they are struggling to tackle on 
their own. Fundamentally, this support should 
improve outcomes for children; if communities can 
collectively prevent problems from escalating or 
becoming overwhelming, children and families  
can thrive. 

Early Help might be required at any stage in a 
child’s life, from pre-birth to adulthood, and 
can support families to address a wide range of 
difficult circumstances, such as poor mental health, 
parental drug or alcohol dependency and domestic 
abuse. In Wirral, Early Help1 includes a range of 
interventions which are offered at Level 1, 2 and 
3 on the Continuum of Need, a tool that helps 
identify a child’s degree of need and vulnerability 
to ensure support is offered by the right agencies, 
at the right time, to prevent problems escalating. 

1 https://www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk/professionals/what-is-early-help/

What is Early Help? What is  
Community Matters?
Community Matters is a strand of Early Help (Level 
2) designed to support families who would benefit 
from extra help to thrive. 

Community Matters was set up in January 2019 
with the awareness that a knock at the door from 
a Social Worker is not what many parents want 
or need when family circumstances are becoming 
difficult. A group of local voluntary, community, 
faith and educational organisations were 
commissioned to test a more community-based 
support model, where families are referred to a 
local organisation to develop a family plan that can 
address their needs. Simultaneously, Capacity were 
commissioned to redesign and implement a longer-
term Community Matters (Early Help) service to 
meet the needs of children and families
living in Wirral. This report is a key stage in the 
redesign. The new approach will be built around 
the insights that families have shared throughout 
this community engagement process.

P
age 18



08 09

WHAT EARLY HELP 
CAN DO 
In this diagram, Sarah describes how Early Help 
could have supported her family through some 
challenging times.

Pregnancy
I got pregnant with my daughter and moved 
back to the area I grew up in. I didn’t have 
my mum or anyone to ask for advice about 
being a Mum; I just had to get on with it

Childhood Illness
My daughter was very poorly when she was 
born and had to stay in Alder Hey Hospital 
for the first few months of her life. I would 
be at hospital for days on end, sometime a 
week would go by without going home. I got 
into rent arrears as I couldn’t leave hospital 
to go and pay it. I also had to give up work 
and start claiming benefits

Employment
I work part-time now on a zero hours 
contract but I have to stay on benefits 
because the hours aren’t consistent. I still 
have nothing left each week; changes to 
Universal Credit mean I am always behind. 
To constantly say ‘no’ to your child is heart-
breaking. My daughter sees me working and 
doesn’t understand why there is nothing 
to spare 

What happened?

What happened?

What happened?

Sudden Loss
At 20, my best friend died suddenly in a 
road traffic accident

What happened?

Someone to talk to about losing my friend

What effective Early Help for me 
would have been

Family Bereavement
My mum was diagnosed with terminal 
cancer and passed away shortly after. 
Nothing prepared me for losing my mum so 
young; I thought she would be coming home

What happened?

Someone to support me through my grief 

What effective Early Help for me 
would have been

Housing Challenges
When Mum died, I didn’t know whether 
I would be able to take over her tenancy 
and stay in our family home. I didn’t know 
anything about running a house, I’d only 
been working part time and paying my mum 
a little board each month

What happened?

Someone to help me understand my 
housing situation and to explain what 
support I was entitled to

What effective Early Help for me 
would have been

Someone who could give me some 
emotional support and practical advice 
about what it would be like when the 
baby came

What effective Early Help for me 
would have been

Someone to help with practical tasks like 
sorting out my bills or sitting with my 
daughter whilst I went home to shower 
and get clean clothes

What effective Early Help for me 
would have been

An employer who gives me more 
consistent hours and a permanent 
contract. The opportunity to have great 
and affordable days out as a family

What effective Early Help for me 
would have been

P
age 19



West Kirby

Thurstaston

Greasby

Frankby

Barnston

Thornton
Hough

Brimstage

Hoylake

Meols

Wallasey

Liverpool

Bebington

Port Sunlight

Birkenhead

Heswall

8

7

2

6

3

4

1
5

9

10

Wirral West A

Wallasey B

Wallasey C

Wallasey A

Liverpool

South Wirral A

Birkenhead A

Birkenhead B

South Wirral B

Wirral West B

10 Noctorum Central5 Hamilton Square

9 Lingham Park East4 Birkenhead East Float

8 Lingham Park West3 Seacombe St. Pauls 

7 Beechwood South2 Bidston St. James East

6 Egremont Promenade South 1 Birkenhead Central

Highest rates of Social 
Care Usage

Lower rates of Social 
Care Usage

10 11

The objectives of this community engagement 
project were to understand:

The experience of being a parent, carer, young 
person or member of the community in Wirral. 
What’s brilliant, what’s challenging, and where 
might extra support be needed?

What do families do when they face  
challenges and how effective do they feel 
existing support is? 

What additional experiences or opportunities 
may help families to feel happier and healthier 
in their communities?

What helps or prevents families  
accessing support?

According to Wirral Children’s Safeguarding 
Board1, Wirral has approximately 71,400 children 
and young people aged 0-18. We were keen to 
speak to families from a range of life situations: 

7% of the parents we spoke to had children who 
had been under Level 4 Statutory Social Care.

5% had experienced an intervention at Level 3-4 
Social Care.

22% had accessed support from Early Help at  
Level 2-3

65% had only accessed support from universally 
accessible services such as, GPs, Children’s Centres,
VCSE organisations and Schools.

Children and young people made up 51% of our 
participants, ranging in age from 8-25 years old. 
We spoke to young people in mainstream, special 
and alternative education settings, as well as  
youth groups, children who are looked after  
and care leavers. 

The project ran for six months between June 
and November 2019 and engaged 447 individual 
children, young people, parents, carers and 
professionals across all nine neighbourhoods  
of Wirral. 

According to the most recent figures from the 
Wirral Intelligence Service, Wirral has a total 
population of 323,235. This means that our sample 
size of 447 gives us a 95% confidence level. 
Alongside the individuals who make up this sample, 
Capacity has regularly engaged local professionals 
and organisations from the statutory, public, 
private and voluntary sectors to understand more 
about the current Early Help services, the local 
context, wider needs and opportunities, ensuring 
wider viewpoints are built into this analysis.

METHODOLOGY 

Neighbourhoods
The team ensured people from all neighbourhoods 
were represented in the engagement. Local
schools were used as hubs and partnerships were 
formed with NHS 0-19 teams and community
stakeholders to recruit participants from across 
the borough. Early Help providers and local family
hotspots, such as children’s centres and libraries 
were also encouraged to participate, ensuring
we reached as many families, from a range of life 
circumstances, as possible. We also spent time
in community cafés, community centres, social 
supermarkets, and with Community Connectors
doing door-knocks to ensure members of the 
community who would not usually access
external support services or statutory services 
could participate.

Lower super output areas
The team also conducted “deep dive” engagement 
with families living in specific Lower Super Output 
Areas, or LSOAs, based on information from Wirral 
Council’s Intelligence Service2. LSOAs are small 
areas within a local ward, which have a population 
of approximately 1500-1700 people. The LSOAs 
(below) were chosen as they have the same rates 
of deprivation, yet half have high children’s social 
care usage, while half have comparatively low rates 
of children’s social care usage.

How residents took part
Wirral residents primarily shared their views via: 

Face-to-face semi-structured interviews
Focus group interviews 
Online questionnaires  

Interviews and focus groups were designed to give 
participants space to share their honest views and 
experiences in ways unbiased by the interviewer’s 
objectives. Open-ended questions such as “What is 
it like to be a parent in Wirral?”, with uninterrupted 
time to answer, were consistently used and 
participants were given space to naturally lead the 
conversation, with insights from one participant 
often sparking responses from others.

How insights were explored 
Interviews were coded using a posteriori 
approach. Topics were not chosen in advance 
and were assembled after careful examination 
of the data, first coding fine-grained themes, 
then grouping similar or superordinate themes. 
Statements given directly by the participant, as 
well as implied or evident information highlighted 
by the researchers, were noted. The POINTS 
methodology3 and a Linguistic Inquiry and Word 
Count (LIWC approach4 were used to explore 
language used in context, a tried and tested 
method for service design-focused  
community engagement. 

1 WSCB Annual Report, 2017-18 https://www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk/the-board/annual-reports-business-plans/ (Accessed 07/01/2020)
2 https://wirral.communityinsight.org/?indicator=imd19_rank_20190101#(Accessed and reported on by Sarah Kinsella, Wirral Intelligence 
Service, May, 2019)

3 Garber et al. (2013); Service Design Toolkit; Mind and Innovation Unit; London
4 Tausczik, Y.R., & Pennebaker, J.W. (2010). The psychological meaning of words: LIWC and computerized text analysis methods. Journal of Language 
and Social Psychology, 29, 24-54.

Problems refer to the challenges people  
are facing.

Opportunities relate to aspects of the current 
system or community that are either working 
brilliantly or would be brilliant with some extra 
development.

Insights are remarkable comments, unique to 
that individual, which need to be held in our minds 
when thinking about the new model.

Needs develop in response to gaps in support 
during a challenging time or experience.

Themes are recurrent thoughts and comments 
repeated across the community. 

System challenges are barriers affecting how 
families access support, stemming from wider 
systems such as Health or Education, generally 
outside of the control of the individual.

As there were more participants from the 
Birkenhead area per head in our sample when 
compared with the Wirral population, we have 
weighted the data by locality, constraining weights 
between 2.00 (i.e. double) and 0.5 (i.e. half). 

This statistical data combined with the case studies 
and personal stories of our participants were used 
to inform the results of this report. 

Two researchers were involved in the coding of 
data. Both have received training in qualitative 
research methods and the importance of 
reflexivity in analysing qualitative data.

72
Wallasey

72
Wallasey

107
West Wirral

47
South Wirral

192
Birkenhead

Where participants lived

P
age 20



I am a Grandma to three girls who are 17, 
14 and 9. The eldest and the youngest have 
lived with me since they were quite little. My 
daughter, Vicky has mental health problems, 
substance addictions and she has also been 
the victim of domestic abuse; she has been 
unable to look after the children since they 
were young. 

People rallied round when I first took the 
children in. I found out about the children’s 
centre at Seacombe and the lady who ran it was 
very, very good; she sent clothes down to us 
and cribs and things. Now it’s very difficult. The 
girls are older and they have a lot of issues of 
their own; the eldest has ADHD, depression and 
PTSD and she self-harms. The youngest is really 
struggling and I can’t cope; I don’t know how to 
help them to understand their experiences or 
how they’re feeling; I think it’s trauma. We need 
someone who understands mental health who 
can talk to me and the girls, as they don’t know 
how to handle their feelings. The youngest has 
a violent temper, I’ve been asking for a long 
time for some help to explain things to her; she 
used to see a specialist at the children’s centre 
which was great, but they’ve stopped that now 
and we have to go to St. Catherine’s.

It’s really hard because I don’t drive, and the 
children have appointments at all different 
places on all different days. I can’t really take 
buses because the children can’t cope with 
them, so we have to get taxis everywhere and 
it’s so expensive. 

I go to church; my faith helps me and you can 
go there and not be judged. That is what gives 
me the strength to cope with it all, but we need 
somewhere we can go which is nice and calm 
and relaxed where we could talk together with 
a professional.
 

12 13

An effective Early Help model needs to be ready 
to meet the needs of a huge range of families 
and their individual circumstances, from parents 
accessing support for one short term challenge  
to families facing multiple and complex  
challenges ahead.

Therefore, to understand what families in specific 
areas in Wirral need and want from Early Help, 
as well as the borough as a whole, we have split 
our results into three sections to ensure the 
diversity and commonality of needs, strengths and 
opportunities can be explored:

Poor Mental Health

Children and families across Wirral identified a 
broad range of unmet mental health needs, from 
anxiety and low mood to severe mental illness that 
they felt current services didn’t have capacity to 
support. Children and adults across the life course 
are struggling with their own wellbeing and are 
concerned about the mental health of their family 
members and friends.

Alongside the joy and love that parents shared 
about their experience of being a parent, they 
also spoke of the demands and challenges that 
parenthood brings. The knock-on effect of poor 
mental health was often discussed. When there 
are other issues such as housing problems or 
difficulties at school faced by a family, poor 
mental health creates a barrier to them 
accessing support for these challenges too. One 
parent told us,

“If someone had knocked on my door to offer 
me help, I wouldn’t have opened it because 
of my anxiety. I thought it would be housing 
coming to kick me out. It was only when 
I overheard someone else from my area 
talking to a worker at the community centre 
and I realised that they were able to help 
other people that I thought, so why not me 
as well?” 

According to an insight report from Wirral Public 
Health, mental health problems account for 
51% of ESA claims in the borough. Therefore, 
understanding and supporting mental health and 
wellbeing in the earliest stages of difficulty could 
massively improve the trajectory of families who 
may otherwise reach crisis point, enabling them to 
cope with the demands of everyday life.

The Toxic Trio

In 22% of instances where mental health was 
mentioned as a challenge, abusive relationships 
were also mentioned. Serious case reviews have 
highlighted that cases involving the Toxic Trio 
of domestic abuse, mental health issues and 
substance misuse cannot be worked effectively 
by any single agency. Wirral Council has policies 
and procedures in place to support professionals 
who are working with families who may be 
experiencing one or more of the Toxic Trio and 
it will be imperative that joint working across 
agencies is part of a new model of Early Help.

Challenging Behaviour:  
A Symptom or A Cause?

Across Wirral, our results showed that families 
rarely identified children’s behaviour as 
a common problem, despite professionals 
repeatedly telling us that it was one of the main 
reasons families need help. What does this tell us? 
Families are focused on addressing the underlying 
factors which contribute to their child’s challenging 
behaviours and their own ability to manage it, be 
that due to stress, relationship breakdowns or 
additional needs, rather than looking at the  
surface issue.

Other challenges faced by families across Wirral 
included:

Coping after the loss of a loved one

Social isolation following the birth of a child

Real difficulty in knowing who or where to go to 
get help

Accessing specialist/clinical services when they 
needed them

...we need somewhere we can go which is 
nice and calm and relaxed where we could 
talk together with a professional.

WHAT COMMUNITIES 
TOLD US

THE WIRRAL  
WIDE PICTURE

Mary, Wallasey

The Challenges We Face

Local area perspectivesThe Wirral wide picture LSOA Deep DivesP
age 21



I live in Rock Ferry with my Mum and three little 
sisters and my big brother who is 16. Mum is 
also expecting another baby. Last year we lost 
our baby sister at only six days old to a physical 
health condition that she was born with. It has 
been a really hard year. Mum has had lots of 
cards and teddies, from friends and family and 
neighbours. We have a big family (three aunties, 
uncle and nan) who are 
very helpful. 

After my sister died, my aunties would come 
and take the younger kids out for day trips and 
do stuff together, which I think was helpful for 
my Mum. I had a good relationship with one of 
my teachers, and Mum rang the school and told 
this teacher what had happened. I was given 
a school counsellor, but she wasn’t any good. 
I would have preferred to have the support at 
home; you’re meant to feel comfortable aren’t 
you? I really just wanted to talk to Mum, not 
a stranger. Mum had lots of support, and we 
went to Claire House which was good because 
they had a separate bit for the younger kids 
to go in while me and Mum went in to see my 
baby sister. At the moment, I would like to have 
more 1:1 time with Mum so that we can do 
normal things together.

What children and young  
people told us
 
Managing unexpected change tied together 
many of the challenges identified by young people 
across Wirral.

Changes at School 

Four of the top ten problems described by young 
people related to school. The transition period 
between primary and high school was particularly 
anxiety provoking and the young people we spoke 
to did not feel informed or equipped to cope with 
this change. This “school transition” worry often 
appeared alongside worries about losing contact 
with friends. 

Young people told us that they worry about what 
their opportunities will look like if they do 
not fit into the standard mould of mainstream 
school or college. They shared that they would 
like more activities based around careers, life skills, 
volunteering, and work experience across Wirral.

Changes at Home

Family was the second largest theme of challenges 
identified by young people. The divorce or 
separation of parents were the primary challenge 
faced by young people. Bereavement and parental 
illness were also recurring items with young people 
saying they feel helpless when parents are ill 
and unprepared and unsupported when faced 
with close personal loss. Mental health concerns, 
particularly anxiety, depression and low mood, 
underpinned many of the responses around these 
tough times for young people. In a small number 
of instances, young people had been bereaved by 
suicide and had struggled to find the right support.

What will my future look like?

Young people perceived that there was a lack of 
meaningful employment opportunities in Wirral
and those who felt otherwise often reported a 
lack of confidence in being able to attain those
positions. Financial worries relating to poorly paid 
jobs were a concern for many of our young
people and Special Educational Needs and 
Disability (SEND) young people highlighted
additional challenges relating to gaining paid 
employment and aspirations for the future as a
young person with additional needs.

14 15

Olivia, 15, Rock Ferry

- Young person with SEND

There’s no end game. 
We get a qualification 
at a low level and it 
doesn’t go anywhere. 
People are happy for 
us to be volunteers but 
they don’t want to pay 
us. We deserve to be 
paid for the work we do 
like anyone else does. 

Key Points

Olivia wants to spend more time with 
her Mum, not professionals who she 
doesn’t have a relationship with.

Olivia liked that Claire House offered 
space for the whole family to come 
along so that she and Mum could 
access support.

Olivia ’s teacher has supported her 
throughout.

Unexpected changes

1 

2 

3 

P
age 22



16 17

MY STORY
LUCY AGED 15

Primary School
Primary school was fine, I had no 
problems at all. I did well in my 
school work, and I had some  
good friends.

Year 9

Due to my health I had low attendance and 
poor punctuality. Some days I would get 
dressed and ready for school but not be able 
to leave the house. On the days where I could 
make it into school, I was always getting in 
trouble for being late which made me even 
more anxious about going the next day. 

Year 10
I was told I wasn’t “school shaped” so I was 
told I should transfer to a local college to 
study hair and beauty, but I didn’t enjoy it, I 
want to be a midwife!

Year 11
I’m at Utopia [Project] now and 
I love it here. They are helping 
me to study towards the GCSE 
subjects I need to go on and 
achieve my dream of being a 
midwife. The 1:1 approach to 
learning is brilliant for me and I 
feel far less anxious. 

The future
I am looking forward to 
being independent and 
training to be a midwife. 

Transition to high school
I had wanted to go to the grammar school 
with my best friend, but I didn’t get in. I ended 
up at a high school which wasn’t even a feeder 
school from my primary, so I didn’t know 
anyone. I knew as soon as I got there that it 
wasn’t the right place for me. 

Intervention
School put a TAF in place because they 
assumed something more must be going on 
at home for me to be acting this way. They 
didn’t ever ask me what I needed. It’s like they 
put a persona of someone with anxiety on to 
me and that wasn’t me. It’s not what I or my 
family needed. 

I have a really supportive mum and boyfriend 
and my stepdad is very understanding; they 
have kept me going.

Current situation
I live with my mum, stepdad and 
younger sister in South Wirral.

P
age 23



18 19

This section outlines the support mechanisms 
that families and communities feel are having the 
biggest impact across Wirral. 

Children and adults told us

People Matter Most 

The main source of support for residents across 
the borough is other people. 53% of adults we 
spoke to named other parents, their own family 
and friends and staff in local assets or services 
as their main source of support. For families 
who needed support outside of what their 
own network could provide, schools and GPs 
were the first ports of call. 60% of all young 
participants mentioned a supportive person. 43% 
of young people said that their mum was their 
main source of support, the highest percentage of 
responses, telling us, 

“My mum, for being a mum and a dad to me.”

19% of young people mentioned their friends 
as a source of support, alongside professionals 
including sports coaches, counsellors and even 
their parent’s managers. One young person 
explained, “my dad’s manager for helping  
us financially”.

“My closest friend is always there for me 
when I’m sad or just too much is going on. 
She can just always be there to help or to 
just listen and I’m really glad she is still my 
best friend.”

19% of young people mentioned times where they 
had been of service to others. 48% of those in this 
category mentioned offering a non-judgemental 
space to talk, for example, “if people need help 
what I do is talk to people and try to make them 
feel a bit better,” while another 48% mentioned 
offering a positive, uplifting attitude, for example, 
“when someone is struggling, I cheer them up by 
making them smile or laugh.”

Third Sector Organisations

Across Wirral, families reported that local 
voluntary, community and social enterprise 
organisations are playing a key role in supporting 
them to thrive. The skill and commitment of staff 
in local organisations across the borough was 
reported by many, whilst the voluntary sector’s 
ability to offer fast and immediate support, be 
that through the provision of direct services or 
signposting to others, is offering a lifeline to many. 

Of note in our engagement was that when third 
sector support was as its best, the person engaged 
didn’t see the experience as support or help; it was 
a place where they belonged.

60% of our young 
participants 
mentioned a 
supportive 
person

We live in Birkenhead with our four children. 
Our eldest daughter Marley is 12 years old 
and has been diagnosed with Attention 
Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD), 
Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) and Social 
Communication Disorder.

The first time we knew anything was different 
was when Marley’s primary school raised some 
concerns about her mannerisms. They were 
so good, really supportive and helped me to 
understand what they were seeing. I made 
notes and took her to the GP, who referred her 
to a paediatrician. During the process I found it 
most helpful to talk to my auntie, as my cousin 
has Asperger’s [Syndrome] and understood 
what I was going through. We were referred to 
CAMHS but I was concerned about the waiting 

time, so we did a lot of research ourselves 
through the internet and through speaking to 
family and friends.

Marley’s primary school were really helpful with 
practical things too. They would allow Marley to 
complete her work outside of the classroom as 
she struggled in class, but then when she
needed to be in class and the transition to high 
school was looming it was quite difficult
to get her back in. Marley now goes to a 
mainstream high school and is doing brilliantly.
The transition went well as the school had an 
extended transition programme where Marley
could spend a lot more time in the school in the 
lead up to make sure she felt comfortable with
the changes coming.

Cath & Joseph, Birkenhead

 School staff were well 
trained and able to 
recognise potential  
signs of difficulties. 
They had a relationship 
with Marley’s family 
which enabled them to 
help Cath and Joseph  
to understand 
their concerns. 

 
Cath found it most 
helpful to speak to 
someone she was close 
to about the experience 
and felt empowered to 
do her own research 
around the subject.

 

 Marley’s high school 
had the infrastructure 
to be able to support 
an extended transition 
period which would 
meet her individual 
needs and allow her  
to remain in 
mainstream education.

1 2 3 

WHAT GREAT SUPPORT 
CURRENTLY LOOKS LIKE

The key ingredient to trusted relationships 
across the borough? An open and  
non-judgemental approach, where 
experiences are shared, and people  
feel listened to and empowered. 

Key Points

P
age 24



20 21

This section explores the spaces where children 
and families feel there are gaps in support within 
their community and discusses needs they feel  
may be unmet by existing services or the  
wider community.

What adults told us 

Mental Health Support

Parents and guardians across Wirral feel the 
biggest gaps are in mental health support, for 
children and young people, as well as themselves. 
Families want emotional support for the whole 
family, particularly around transition periods such 
as puberty and bereavement, and want practical 
support and resources or strategies that they can 
take away to try at home. Parents still worry that 
asking for help or acknowledging that they are 
struggling will mean that social services will 
need to get involved.

What children and young  
people told us 

Family Illness and Bereavement

56% of young people identified gaps in support 
centred around the individual needs of their 
family. 35% of these family-related needs 
were associated with a lack of support for 
bereavement and parental/familial illness. 
Young people feel that there is little support 
or information for young people when their 
parents or guardians are unwell; they are 
experiencing a great amount of hopelessness and 
helplessness. When support is there, it is having a 
real impact.

Balancing School and Home Life

Young people want help to manage school 
workloads, particularly around exam time. Young 
people suggested that they need more ways to 
step away from the stresses of school and want 
more opportunities for connecting with family. 
Young people perceived that there was a lack of 
meaningful employment opportunities following 
education. This finding relates strongly to the 
challenges young people mentioned around their 
worries about their future aspirations and the 
impact upon their mental health.

Mental Health

Mental health support was a common gap 
identified by children and young people and 
underpins many of the challenges young people 
and their families face. The young people we spoke 
to were open about needing emotional support 
and felt as though lower to mid-level needs were 
not being addressed or supported because services 
only support those who have severe mental illness. 
Some young people have expressed that they 
feel as though they need to cause harm to 
themselves to get the support that they need. 
Anxiety and low mood were mentioned in 40% of 
mental health needs.

Rigid Services

Families identified a lack of awareness of the 
local support offer, alongside inflexible opening 
times of services and long waiting lists as gaps 
in support. This contributes to families not being 
able to get the right support at the right time, due 
to work and school commitments, and trying to 
balance the needs of the whole family. Families 
turn to local hubs such as schools and the GP as a 
source of support, however they are not always 
equipped to support the diverse range of families’ 
needs and are generally difficult to access outside 
of school or working hours.

Experts by Experience

Some parents also felt as though they do not have 
enough opportunity to come together and share
their parenting experiences with one another in a 
safe environment. Many adults told us that
organised ‘parenting courses’ do not meet this 
need, as they do not want to be taught how to be
a parent, as it feels judgemental and critical.  
They want opportunities to develop and 
understand their children so that they can 
better meet their needs.

I had post-natal depression after my second 
baby and despite having been a school 
professional and knowing that Early Help 
wasn’t about removing children, as soon 
as someone said to me ‘I think it would 
be worth considering TAF for you and 
the family’, I felt the blood drain from 
my face. I was scared even though I knew 
from my professional background that it 
was supposed to be helpful, I felt like she 
thought I couldn’t cope. 

I think there are a lot of universal community 
services that we don’t really know the scope 
of or don’t hear much about until you’re in 
need. For example, I didn’t realise that you 
could still access the health visitor after the 
two-year check-up and I feel like the school 
nurse is inaccessible.

Andrea, 
Mum to Jackson (7) and 
Amelia (3)

Schools are the prime place to have someone 
to talk to about things because we are there 
24/7. There needs to be more compassion 
and empathy for young people, and shorter 
waiting times for support. I had a school 
counsellor, but there was one counsellor 
for close to 2000 pupils and if you don’t 
click with that person then it’s tough. There 
was always a line outside of her door; there 
needs to be a bigger pastoral team made up 
of people with different qualities. There’s 
also no transition support from CAMHS to 
adult services, if you want to access services 
once you have turned 18, you have to source 
them yourself.

Jamie,
Aged 18

Alison, 
Mum to Caitlin (4) and 
Rex (2)

I have been a young carer for my mum 
throughout school and I have had some 
really good support along the way. There are 
three things that I think were really helpful 
for me and my mum. Barnardos were great, 
they worked with us both; educated me 
about my mum’s health and helped mum to 
deal with me too. KidsTime offered space 
and time for me and Mum to be together in 
an environment that wasn’t home which was 
nice. They even paid for the taxis to make it 
easy for us to get there and bought pizza for 
us to share. That gave us the opportunity for 
me to be a child and meant Mum didn’t have 
to worry that we were on our own. Finally, 
my school: they were really understanding 
and helped me with life at home from a 
young age. They provided a counsellor and 
gave me time when I needed it.

Emma, 
17, Prenton

CURRENT  
PERCEIVED GAPS

Financial Worries

Gaps in support exacerbate a similar lack of 
confidence or direction when a parent’s capacity 
is overwhelmed, with young people worrying 
that parental or siblings’ health needs may put the 
family at financial risk. Young people expressed to 
us that they would not know who to talk to about 
it, telling us that they would not talk to a member 
of staff at school as it would be embarrassing 
that their family were struggling.

P
age 25



22 23

This section explores the differences and 
similarities across Wirral’s various neighbourhoods 
to help us understand what more local, place-
based Early Help support would need to consider. 

THE PICTURE OF  
EARLY HELP AT THE 
WARD/LOCALITY LEVEL 

P
age 26



24 25

Challenges

Current perceived gaps 
Whilst a large number of Birkenhead residents felt 
that accessing a local service had helped them, a
larger number of Birkenhead residents said they 
were unaware of what local offers were available,
suggesting that for many, a major gap in 
current provision is simply the availability of 
information.

39% of Birkenhead participants mentioned some 
form of emotional support need that was 
currently going unmet. Of those who discussed 
mental health concerns, waiting times for 
counselling and psychotherapy services were 
commonly mentioned.

20% of Birkenhead residents mentioned a lack of 
practical support, such as crèches or financial
advice. 52% of all Wirral residents who said 
practical support is lacking came from Birkenhead.

Hopes for Early Help
Young people we spoke to in Birkenhead were 
unanimously optimistic about the future. Many 
spoke of hopes for support that would reduce 
family stresses in the coming year, while  
others hoped for support to improve their 
academic attainment. 

The adults we spoke to wanted local transport 
improved, with 18% of residents identifying travel 
and transport as a barrier.

Adults spoke of wanting Early Help services to be 
more person-centred and asset based. There 
was a feeling amongst these residents that their 
experiences were sometimes devalued in favour 
of professional opinions or check-box type 
exercises. This in turn left some feeling that their 
real needs had gone unnoticed or unmet.

BIRKENHEAD  

Maggie is a single mum and has fibromyalgia, 
depression and a history of self-harm. 
Maggie feels as though everything in her 
TAF meeting is centred around her son’s 
suspected autism, when there are potentially 
other things that she may need support with. 
Maggie doesn’t leave the house unless it 
is absolutely necessary as she doesn’t feel 
confident in coping with both children  
at once. 

I had positive experiences with Safe Families for 
Children, who gave us a volunteer to take us for 
days out or to the park and act as an extra pair 
of hands. I really liked that they would come 
round and find out what I needed and I built 
up good relationships with the volunteer. They 
would even just give me a call for a chat and to 
find out how I was doing. 

Now that the children are both in school and 
pre-school, I feel less guilty about not taking 
them out and to the park a lot as I know they 
get a lot of chances to play at school. When one 

of them was in nursery I could handle the other 
and vice versa but now that they both finish at 
the same time I get no time with either of them 
on their own. It can be so overwhelming. What 
I’d really like to see is more play centres and 
family centres as the ones that I know of are too 
far for me to travel to with the children. The bus 
would cost around £5 which I can’t afford even 
if I felt confident in taking the children on the 
bus on my own. 

I do go to a church group which I heard 
about from the Community Connectors. They 
have coffee mornings on and they are very 
supportive in helping out with the children if I 
turn up looking harassed. Recently I hadn’t been 
for a week or so and the vicar rang to see how I 
was as they’d noticed I wasn’t there. I explained 
that I didn’t have a pram for the youngest and 
couldn’t get there without one because of his 
additional needs, next thing I know he was 
ringing me back to say they had asked around 
and found a pram to donate to me. Small things 
like that just make such a huge difference. 

Maggie 
Mum-of-two (Aged 3 and 4)

Assets
Local organisations are playing a key role: the 
majority of people we spoke to in Birkenhead said 
that the opportunity to access a local service was 
of significant benefit to them. 32% of Birkenhead 
residents had accessed one or more local services 
that had helped them.

School is key: many people identified how either 
a lack of trust between themselves and school 
staff had been a barrier for them getting the right 
support, or how a good relationship with school 
staff had been an important facilitator.

10% of our Birkenhead residents had praised the 
support they had received from a health visitor
as a primary source of support for them. 

Many Birkenhead residents spoke of the additional 
stress they feel when caring for a child with 
additional needs.

31% of people who highlighted social isolation 
as a problem were Birkenhead residents.

43% of people who told us mental health was a 
challenge were Birkenhead residents, more than 
any other area.

P
age 27



26 27
Current perceived gaps 
Local services aren’t open at the right time: 16% 
of people from Wallasey said that a greater range 
of opening times is needed. This is a factor  
in Wallasey residents travelling out of area to 
access support.

A lack of peer-support: Wallasey residents felt 
that a lack of spaces or opportunities to bring
together parents from the area affected the 
community’s ability to support each other.
Considering attendance at the GP tends to be 
higher here, could social prescribing play a key role 
in connecting people with peers?

A lack of affordable child-care: 13% of Wallasey 
residents relied on support from close friends and
families as they couldn’t find appropriate childcare.

Hopes for Early Help
Wallasey residents want a greater number and 
wider range of offers locally. They want shorter
waiting lists for support and greater financial 
support, including financial advice.

We’ve started a WhatsApp group for the kids 
in our family and close friends to do lifts to 
Beavers/Scouts/football etc. That’s been 
really helpful as we can all call upon  
each other.

We have found that there are lots of 
uniformed organisations that are great for 
children to take part in like Scouts or Cadets. 
However, there is a real stigma attached to 
going as people think that it is expensive 
because of the uniform and subs but there 
are financial support packages for families 
who aren’t able to afford it, people just don’t 
know about it.

Lee 
Dad to Saskia (12) & Joe (7)

WALLASEY

There isn’t a lot on at the children’s centres, the 
same with the libraries. A few years ago that is 
where people went to meet other new mums 
but they are closed a lot now and when they 
are open there isn’t anything on that you can 
just turn up for anyway, you have to have been 
referred. Public transport is also a huge barrier; 
they have cancelled some of the routes and it is 
expensive and time consuming. It’s okay if you 
have a car but otherwise it’s a pain; I wanted to 
teach my kids to use public transport but it’s so 
rubbish [that] it is more hassle than it’s worth.

Lou 
Mum to James (10),  
Alexia (8) and Max (5)

Challenges 
Social Isolation was most frequently mentioned 
by Wallasey residents. Unlike in Birkenhead, this 
did not coincide with mentions of mental health 
concerns. There was a perception amongst 
Wallasey residents that there is a lack of service 
or support in the area. 80% of those mentioning 
a lack of services were Wallasey residents. Unlike 
Birkenhead residents who mentioned a lack of 
information about services, Wallasey residents 
explicitly felt there are a lack of services to  
know about.

Assets
The majority of residents in Wallasey had  
accessed a service that had significantly helped 
them. However, unlike in Birkenhead, Wallasey 
residents are travelling out of area to access 
support. GPs are the first port of call; 36% of 
people in Wirral who named their GP as their 
primary source of support came from Wallasey.

Parents and guardians are turning to schools and 
GPs for information about local opportunities 
and experiences for families, thus information 
needs to be consistent and clearly communicated 
by professionals working in these environments. 
The evolution of Primary Care Networks (PCNs) 
across Wirral could offer an opportunity for the 
developments of Early Help and PCNs to dovetail 
in the future.

P
age 28



28 29

WEST WIRRAL  
Challenges 

Assets
Many residents in West Wirral said connecting 
with other parents was most beneficial in 
challenging times and that they would like more 
opportunities to do this. West Wirral residents saw 
the building and preservation of relationships 
between parents and professionals (health 
and education) as the most important factor in 
successfully overcoming challenges, with 40% of 
people highlighting these relationships as an asset.

Current perceived gaps 
Whole family support for children, young people, 
parents and grandparents, was mentioned by 18% 
of our West Wirral residents.

27% said they would like greater access to 
emotional support, while 18% said they would like 
greater access to practical support.

The need for more financial advice and support 
was identified by 10% of our West Wirral sample.

Hopes for Early Help
28% of West Wirral residents would like greater 
consistency in the frontline service staff they see. 
These residents identified staffing changes as a 
barrier to getting the help they need, stating that 
it left their care feeling impersonal.

28% residents felt that their needs had gone 
unrecognised and hoped that Early Help would be 
more responsive and person-centred.

My husband and I have three beautiful children; a 
son aged 11, a daughter aged 9 and our youngest 
son aged 6. I have recently been diagnosed with 
ADHD which has been a huge challenge in itself.

We are currently waiting 35 weeks for a 
paediatrician appointment due to the behavioural 
difficulties of my eldest son. He was born 
premature and from a very early age, he has 
exhibited signs of both high functioning Autism 
and ADHD, such as repetitive behaviours in play 
and day to day life, increasingly violent meltdowns, 
issues with toileting and high levels of restlessness 
and anxiety. School have been supportive but 
we have had to push for a referral as he is bright 
and academic. His need for control and constant 
attention has made family life extremely difficult 
over the years, especially for his siblings who bear 
the brunt of his meltdowns. My daughter suffers 

from anxiety and low self-esteem as a result, and 
my youngest son also shows signs of being on 
the spectrum. I am a teacher used to dealing with 
challenging children, but when they are your own, 
it is exhausting and isolating.

There seems to be very little help available. We 
have been turned down by CAMHS, and yet we all 
need help to move forward as a family and help 
our children effectively manage their emotions. My 
son is due to move to secondary school soon, and I 
am already concerned about how he will cope with 
the transition, especially without a diagnosis. The 
stress is taking its toll on all of us both physically 
and mentally, but I also know that we are one of 
so many families struggling to cope while on the 
Autism / ADHD pathway.

Steph 
West Wirral

What else would help

Support from an ADHD specialist, especially 
for my husband

Sibling support for my daughter who is 
anxious and stressed

Respite / stress-free time out 

A clearer pathway. I have had to fight for my 
child every step of the way so far, despite 
being told when he was born that likely to be 
behavioural issues due to his low  
birth weight.

I need CAMHS to answer the phone when  
I ring

Well publicised strategies about meeting the 
needs of multiple children e.g. dealing with 
meltdowns and violence towards siblings 

Finally, I want a diagnosis so that the 
behaviour of my boys is recognised as 
symptomatic of a neurological condition 
and that they deserve love and support, not 
blame and judgement from others. I also 
want help to improve the self-esteem of 
everyone in my family

What is helping 

Making connections with other local families 
raising children with additional needs

Strong local friendships and a network of 
support with childcare

Being honest about the challenges we face

Courses run by the ADHD Foundation

Getting my own diagnosis and realising that 
through no fault of my own, my brain works 
differently just like my boys

Time out

Speaking to a CAMHS psychologist and  
being given some strategies to manage 
violent meltdowns

Emotional support for all my children  
at school

Please be mindful of the fear I have of having my children taken away 
from me. My default thought? I am the world’s worst parent and you 
can’t tell someone otherwise if that’s how we feel.

For families facing these hardships, they feel that 
accessing appropriate support, or forming trusting 
relationships with school and professionals is an 
additional challenge.

41% of West Wirral participants mentioned their 
own or their child’s mental health as a significant 
challenge, the highest of any area. 

33% discussed challenges involving relationship 
breakdown or domestic violence.

P
age 29



30 31

Just having adult 
company is support 
enough sometimes! 
Having a baby can be 
the loneliest time.

Just having adult company is support enough 
sometimes! Having a baby can be the loneliest 
time. We used to have a tea and toast group 
where a few of us would go and take the 
toddlers and we would take it in turns in pairs 
to go outside the playroom and have a cup of 
tea and some toast for 15 minutes (and be able 
to eat and drink them whilst still hot!) while 
the other mums would watch your baby – then 
rotate. The Delamere Centre is good – and there 
are One Stop Shops at some of the libraries. The 
cafe at Mothercare in Bromborough has some 
facilities for babies too and there are more 
mums and tots groups in Bromborough. 

Stay and play/settling in sessions at school 
were great, you would get chance to speak 
to other parents and the children had a bit of 
a staggered approach to school days. My son 
cried every single day I dropped him off until 
he was in Year two. I sat and cried in the car 
every time I dropped him off. What seemed to 
help was taking him to social groups outside of 
school where he could build his confidence but 
it becomes very expensive if you have to take 
them to two or three groups a week, and that’s 
if you only have one child, what about if you 
have more than one?

Jenny & Ian 
Bebington

Challenges 

Assets
Similar to Wallasey, 29% of South Wirral residents 
stated that their GP was their primary source of 
support and that interactions with their GP were 
amongst the most helpful their had received.
Almost 10% of South Wirral participants 
mentioned specific instances of good 
communication (e.g. opening times, good advice, 
etc.) from service providers as a significant help 
to them, the highest of any ward.

Current perceived gaps 
South Wirral residents want greater practical 
support during difficult times. Communities in 
South Wirral also want more emotional support, 
describing a gap in opportunities to form local 
friendships. Residents described a lack of close 
friendships between parents in the area.

Hopes for Early Help
38% of South Wirral residents want to see a 
greater range of support offers in the area. 
These residents felt that, while there was support 
available in the area, many offers were specialised 
or didn’t meet their needs. 

25% felt that the support they received felt like  
a “check-box exercise”. Residents want support to 
be more flexible and person-centred, taking into 
account the unique needs of their family.

Bereavement was a common challenge, 
presenting in 14% of South Wirral interviews. 

36% of South Wirral adults feel their own, or their 
child’s mental health is a significant challenge.

22% of South Wirral residents also described 
struggling with their physical health, the only 
ward this theme appeared in. 

SOUTH WIRRAL 

P
age 30



32 33

COMMUNITY  
DEEP DIVE:  
LEARNING FROM LSOAS
To ensure learning about what does and doesn’t 
work can be built into the new service design, we 
conducted deep dive engagement in 10 Wirral 
LSOAs. All the areas had high rates of deprivation, 
yet 5 of the areas had far fewer families in social 
care. We were keen to understand what is keeping 
these families out of the social care system:

Are families facing different types of problems 
in different LSOAs?
Are there particular gaps in support in  
certain communities?
What role do community assets play in helping 
families to thrive?

To gain a wide picture of each LSOA, alongside 
speaking to families and members of the 
community, we looked at data held about the  
local area, such as the amount of green space 
in the area or the presence of betting shops or 
licensed premises.

1. Areas of higher social care usage are more 
densely populated with community assets, 
organisations and children’s centres

Families from areas of high social care usage 
identified assets within the community which 
were more targeted services such as Safe 
Families for Children, Involve North West or 
the women’s refuge. 

Families from areas of lower social care 
usage were more likely to identify universal 
services, such as libraries, beaches, parks, 
or faith groups as assets which could help 
families thrive.

2. The types of challenges faced by families 
in the 10 LSOAs did not vary significantly, 
although the overall number of challenges 
identified was higher in areas of high social 
care usage.

3. Families from areas of lower social care usage 
have better local social relationship scores, 
higher belonging scores and have more green 
space. They also have less community needs 
(as scored by community needs index).

4. Areas of lower social care usage are also less 
densely populated with licensed premises, 
betting shops and takeaways.

Across all 10 LSOAs, people described 
similar gaps in support  

Emotional support and encouragement 
Information sharing and joined up working 
Professional knowledge 
Communication of what’s on in the local area 
Affordable varied activities for the whole family 
Groups which prepare you for the reality of 
having a baby 
Effective signposting
Adult mental health support
Spaces for young people to hang out  
which aren’t focused around sport or  
specific ‘activities’

In addition, people living in areas with 
high levels of social care usage feel 
there are gaps in:

LGBTQ+ support (particularly for SEND  
young people) 
Good links between adult social care and 
children’s services.
Practical support to manage additional  
needs (incl. hands on support and access to  
affordable equipment)
Community/ plain clothes Police/Social Workers 
Adult mental health support
Environmental initiatives

What did we learn? 

Areas of lower social care usage ask 
for help sooner and benefit from that 

help in the longer term. 

Help seeking and self-care behaviours 
mean that power stays with the individual

Why aren’t families in areas of high social 
care usage doing this?

Problems are nipped in 
the bud when manageable

Families told us: “I didn’t ask for 
help earlier because…

I am embarrassed; I’ve 
been here before

I don’t feel like I 
deserve help

I am getting what 
services can offer, not 

what I really need

Last time I felt 
like support only 

highlighted my failures

They seemed like small 
problems but now 

they have built up to 
something  

much bigger

Last time I wasn’t 
trusted to help myself, 

someone “fixed” it  
for me

 I’ve had referrals 
before, things are 
just getting worse

25%

9% 9%
9%

14%

17%17%

Challenges in areas of 
high social care usage 

In Summary:

Challenges in areas of 
lower social care usage 

22%

7%

15% 8%

26%

15%
7%

Relationships  
and Comms

Relationships
and Comms

Other Finances

Environment OtherMental Health Environment

Pressures of 
Parenting

Pressures of 
parenting

Accessibility Accessibility

Additional Needs Additional Needs

P
age 31



BIRKENHEAD CENTRAL

Insights from families in areas of high social care usage 

1.

 Key Challenges

We can often feel unheard and we are trying to 
address multiple challenges at the same time, 
such as:

Issues with our housing
A lack of childcare options 
Keeping ourselves and our families safe
Supporting our children who have  
additional needs

Assets

We have lots of love and support from 
family, friends, professionals and members 
of the community. 

There are some fantastic hubs within the 
community which offer experiences for 
families to take part in. 

Current perceived gaps

Environmental initiatives in the local area 

Appropriate housing solutions that meet  
our needs. 

Aspirations for early 
help

For it to be encouraging, warm and led by 
what we need

For services to be coordinated and work in a 
joined-up way. 

We like coming here and being with our friends 
and working on our music; we feel supported to 
work towards our goals.
- Group of young people from The Hive

34 35

P
age 32



36 37

BIDSTON ST. JAMES EAST 

2.

Key Challenges

We don’t know where to go for help when it 
comes to many of our challenges, such as:

Managing our mental health and  
social isolation

Coping with additional caring responsibilities

Domestic abuse

Developmental delays in our children 

Assets

There are some lovely places to visit locally 
such as Birkenhead Park and the St. James’ 
Centre

Our own networks of family and friends and 
our online communities too

Local children’s centres and schools. 

Current perceived gaps

Good links between Adult Social Care and 
Children’s Services

Safe places for families to go following 
domestic abuse

Respite opportunities from  
caring responsibilities 

Aspirations

For it to be consistent, informative and  
well publicised

For support to be trauma informed

We want to be able to take part in 
experiences as a family which are varied 
across times and days. 

When we don’t have 
extended family 
support I don’t know 
anywhere to go for help 
when I’ve got the baby.”

Insights from families in areas of high social care usage 

P
age 33



38 39

SEACOMBE ST. PAUL’S

3.

Key Challenges

We feel unprepared for the intense demands 
of parenthood, in particular:

The impact of parenting upon our 
relationships, mental health and finances

Feelings of social isolation

Navigating pathways if our children have 
additional needs of any kind

Assets

We love family activities such as reading 
groups, the free museums in Liverpool, 
woodland walks and going to the beach

We have good relationships with the people 
around us

The health visitor drop in service

Current perceived gaps

Affordable, local and varied activities and 
experiences for our whole family to take 
part in

Groups after school and work which help 
families to prepare for the changes a new 
baby will bring

Support with breastfeeding and weaning 
and the impact on wellbeing.

Aspirations

For it to be local, affordable and  
well communicated 

For it to offer us a host of opportunities to 
spend time together as a whole family

I’ve always been around babies, always looked 
after other people’s babies, but nothing 
prepares you for your own. I had an infection 
following my c-section and I desperately wanted 
to breastfeed, but my daughter would not 
latch. I’ve been exclusively pumping since my 
daughter was born and I’m still pumping now, 
it’s even harder than breastfeeding as even 
when my daughter is sleeping I have to wake up 
every four hours to pump, and then clean and 
sterilise the pump and then she needs feeding 
again. One of the hardest things is not being 
able to pick her up while  
I’m pumping.

My health visitor (HV) sent me to my GP as 
she felt as though my mood was very low and 
I seemed to be very down. I had noticed this 
myself but I never would have done anything 
about it because it’s just another thing to sort. 
It’s like the HV’s suggestion gave me permission 
to go and it felt like it was okay to get help for 
yourself and not just your baby. I would say to 
other mums: don’t be afraid to ask for help. 
What I really wanted from support as a new 
parent was someone to reassure me that I am 
doing a good job and to tell me to keep going, 
someone who understands the lengths you 

have gone to, to get to where you are now and 
celebrate the little wins. On a recent visit from 
a Home-Start family support worker, I got the 
opportunity to make myself some hot toast 
with butter, and enjoy it while it was still hot. 
I can’t remember the last time I ate toast that 
was actually hot!

Lisa 
Life with a new baby

I would say to other 
mums: don’t be afraid 
to ask for help. What 
I really wanted from 
support as a new 
parent was someone to 
reassure me that I am 
doing a good job and to 
tell me to keep going.

Insights from families in areas of high social care usage 

P
age 34



40 41

BIRKENHEAD EAST FLOAT  HAMILTON SQUARE 

5.4.

Key Challenges

We find managing additional needs within the 
family a challenge, whether they are physical 
or mental health related. This experience can 
be made worse by:

Poor accessibility

Lack of transport

Broken down relationships with our families 
or professionals

Key Challenges

We are worried to ask for help in case it leads 
to our children being taken away. The types 
of challenges we are worried about seeking 
support for are: 

Mental health

Substance misuse and addiction

Domestic abuse

Bereavement

Additional needs

Assets

We enjoy making the most of our 
surroundings including, Birkenhead Park, 
Churches and school coffee mornings

There are some wonderful services such as 
sensory play groups, Tomorrow’s Women 
Wirral, Safe Families for Children and Wirral 
Council’s Early Help (TAF)

Assets

Supportive relationships with health 
professionals

Services such as Involve North West, the 
women’s refuge and Creative  
Youth Development

Current perceived gaps

Support to take children out when additional 
needs are involved (either our own or of  
a child) 

Support around understanding our children’s 
behaviour and opportunities to spend 1:1 
time with our children

Affordable equipment for SEND children, 
such as prams for children with  
additional needs

Current perceived gaps

Local support, all under one roof where 
children are welcome or crèche facilities are 
available.

Support and signposting around adult 
mental health

Aspirations

For it to be non-judgemental, open and 
supportive: both practically and emotionally

For it to offer local and accessible solutions 
and experiences which takes into account 
the needs of parents and siblings too

Aspirations

For it to offer informal and safe places for us 
to ask for help

For it to support our whole family

For there to be a strong community support 
presence, like plain clothes police officers 
and social workers who are based in  
the community.

Insights from families in areas of high social care usage Insights from families in areas of high social care usage 

P
age 35



42 43

OUR FAMILY

Dad (Tom) Mum (Sue), and their children, Peter (19) and Ashleigh (14), live in Birkenhead. Sue has 
anxiety and a physical health condition which limits her mobility and both Peter and Ashleigh 
have additional needs. 

Peter’s journey (age 19) 

When Peter was a baby he never cried and he 
never really played either, although he was very 
fast in his development. This was the first sign 
for us that he was different from other children. 
He also had difficulties at nursery and seemed to 
develop incredibly fast. We didn’t initially think 
he was autistic, but we weren’t sure. Peter was 
assessed by an Educational Psychologist and 
CAMHS completed an assessment for autism 
and social communication disorder. Following 
Peter’s diagnosis, we paid privately for a sensory 
integration (SI) assessment. This was really helpful 
as it gave us specific exercises and routines for 
Peter’s hyperstimulation which really benefit him. 

It was a lot of money but the waiting list for an 
NHS assessment is particularly long as there are 
limited staff trained in SI.

Something we have found challenging in getting 
support for Peter over the years is that as soon 
as organisations/professionals hear he has a 
diagnosis, they say that is the cause of any other 
issues and refer us to Autism Together. This is 
inaccessible to us because my wife has reduced 
mobility so when I’m at work they wouldn’t be able 
to attend.

Ashleigh’s journey (age 14) 

Ashleigh has diagnoses of ADHD, ASD, ODD and 
Sensory Dysfunction. Ashleigh struggles with 
impulse control (risk taking behaviours), anxiety, 
friendships and concentration. From age three 
we could tell she had trouble managing her 
emotions, particularly anger. We had a referral to 
CAMHS quite early, and she had the assessment 
for ADHD, then she was put on medication at age 
six. We noticed a huge difference in her behaviour 
once she was on medication and her schoolwork 
and concentration improved. Her language 
development flagged an assessment for Autism, 
and she was later diagnosed. In the past 18 months 
Ashleigh has been exploring her gender. We have 
been told that this is ‘common’ for girls of her age 
who are autistic, and we have had no support other 
than to be told ‘it’s probably just a phase’. We want 
to be supportive and able to help but we aren’t 
really sure where to turn.

 

“Our children have additional needs; they 
are also both really nice kids. The focus for 
us has always been about the social side of 
their lives. They have always been academic, 
and we have always known they could achieve 
whatever they set out to, but we chose their 
schools based on the pastoral offer. We 
wanted them to be able to have relationships 
and they both have good groups of friends 
and they are both very kind. Ashleigh loves 
helping out at the Brownies and does a lot 
for her mum and Peter is becoming very 
independent which we are incredibly  
proud of.”

What has helped? 

Having a single 
contact to go to 
gives us confidence 
that someone is 
there when we  
need them

Counselling  
support for Sue

The Sensory 
Integration 
assessment

Our children have additional needs; they are also both really nice 
kids. The focus for us has always been about the social side of 
their lives. They have always been academic, and we have always 
known they could achieve whatever they set out to, but we chose 
their schools based on the pastoral offer. We wanted them to be 
able to have relationships, they both have good groups of friends 
and they are both very kind. Ashleigh loves helping out at the 
Brownies and does a lot for her mum and Peter is becoming very 
independent which we are incredibly proud of.

Support which is:

Led by needs, not the diagnosis 

Local  

Individual: We want somewhere the children 
could go where they are understood as 
individuals with their own likes, dislikes  
and needs.

Full and proper assessments which are well 
coordinated then recommendations to be 
outlined in a report which is given to us to 
refer back to.  

We would like activities not based around 
sport. Somewhere where we have a shared 
interest with other young people but not 
focused on our diagnosis.  

Time for dad to do something by himself,  
even just go to the allotment. 

What we need 
1.

3.

2.

4.

P
age 36



44 45

EGREMONT  
PROMENADE SOUTH

Insights from families in areas of lower social care usage 

6.

Key Challenges

Our main challenges are focused around the 
impact of the following on family life:

Lack of childcare

Relationship breakdown

Closure of facilities in the area

Assets

Our own networks of family and friends 
within the community are our main source 
of support. 

We love libraries, art galleries, and local 
woodland areas as well as home-based 
activities such as board games, crafts and 
baking.

Current perceived gaps

Activities for us to do together as a family 
and to promote the parent relationship

Specific groups for particular needs, such as 
support with twins or home education

Practical support groups which Dads feel 
comfortable and able to attend 

Aspirations

For it to focus on helping us to strengthen 
relationships within our family

For it to be a community based approach. 

As a single dad, I’d like 
to see more groups 
which enable us to 
come together and help 
us to learn about the 
practical things about 
raising children that you 
don’t know before you 
do it.

P
age 37



46 47

BEECHWOOD SOUTH

7.

Key Challenges

We find it difficult to overcome barriers to 
accessing support such as lack of transport 
and poor communication with and between 
professionals. Some of the things we need 
support with include:

Managing additional needs

Managing finances

Spending quality time with our children 

Assets

Neighbours, family, and friends are 
important to us, and we use social media to 
find support groups and help ourselves

Schools, GPs and health visitors

Parks, beaches and sports clubs.

Current perceived gaps

Age specific and aspirational clubs and 
activities for children and young people to 
get involved in such as accessible  
swimming facilities

Indoor places for teenagers to spend time 
together

Support for homeless people

Clear communication of what’s on in the 
local area and across Wirral. 

Aspirations

For it to be kind, colourful and fun

For it to be inclusive, accessible and safe

I live on The Beechwood with my three kids. I 
had a support worker come in a while ago to 
help out with getting the place in order. 

I knew the house was an absolute mess; our 
clothes were stained and my children would 
often get comments from other children at 
school but I had so many other things to think 
about I didn’t think it was that important to 
begin with. I’d been scared we were going to 
lose the house completely, so I thought it didn’t 
matter. We were given a support worker who 
came in and sat with us to figure out what we 
needed; a washing machine, vacuum cleaner 
and to get the house to a clean state so that 
it was easier to maintain because it was so 
overwhelming that I didn’t know where to start. 

The support worker did all of that, bought us a 
washing machine and a vacuum, helped to tidy 
and clean, we even had a photo taken at the end 
to show what a great job had been done. 
Today the house is a mess again because what 

they didn’t help me with was understanding 
how often to clean, how to use the washing 
machine and things like that. I’ve no real routine 
so it all just built up again and over time has 
ended up in the same state it was before. I’m 
too embarrassed to ask for help again.

Charlotte 
Life at home

Key Points

1 Charlotte’s underlying needs were 
not recognised, she felt ‘done to’ by 
professionals which left her feeling 
disempowered and embarrassed

 

2 An improved model of Early Help 
must address the root cause of 
problems, whatever they may be, as 
opposed to treating the symptoms.

Insights from families in areas of lower social care usage 

P
age 38



48 49

LINGHAM PARK EAST AND WEST

8/9.

Key Challenges

We worry about the impact of the challenges 
we face on our children and we can feel like 
there is a lack of community to support us with 
difficulties such as: 

Domestic abuse

Poor parental physical health

Poverty 

Social isolation 

Assets

Activities at the children’s centre for families 
with young children

Tomorrow’s Women Wirral

Wirral Council Early Help service.

Current perceived gaps

Indoor, safe spaces for young people which 
don’t revolve around activities

Support and communication from school

Opportunities to integrate into the 
community if you are from outside of the 
area 

Aspirations

For it to be connected and to connect us  
to others

For it to offer opportunities to improve 
our own life skills, such as knowledge and 
understanding of housing and finances. 

I grew up in Moreton, the community there are 
very together; everyone knows each other and 
helps each other out. I think it was hard growing 
up though, especially for my mum; she had me 
when she was 16 and we lived with my nan until 
my mum met my stepdad. When my little sister 
was born I remember I slept on a mattress in 
the living room until we could afford to 
move out. 

I want to be an Engineer when I leave college 
so that I don’t have to worry about money, 
I’ll probably invest some money too so that I 
always have something to fall back on.

I’d like it if there was more for young people 
in my area, it’s not very young person friendly. 
We need somewhere to be able to go and chill 
which is indoors but not specific ‘activities’. 

Scott 
Aged 15

[We want] something like how adults go to a 
pub, it’s warm and dry and you can just catch up 
with people, but obviously no alcohol! We don’t 
want to hang about outside but there’s nowhere 
else to go.

Insights from families in areas of lower social care usage 

P
age 39



50 51

NOCTORUM CENTRAL 

10.

Key Challenges

Our key challenges centre around parenthood 
and the varied difficulties being a parent 
brings. In particular: 

Being a young parent

Sleep

Breastfeeding difficulties

Social isolation

Assets

People within our community; we are very 
accepting and understand that everyone 
needs help sometimes. 

Information is shared well within our 
community

Church and charity ran play groups, 
breastfeeding groups

Cubs and Scouts

Current perceived gaps

Support for difficult life events that 
everyone will experience at some point such 
as a new baby or a bereavement

Peer support

Opportunities to learn how best to support 
teenagers

Aspirations

For it to make use of brilliant people and 
organisations locally

For it to focus on listening to our community

For it to offer us face to face opportunities 
to build quality relationships in an  
organic way

Insights from families in areas of lower social care usage 

Families living in areas of 
lower social care usage have 
more positive experiences 
of accessing support within 
their community.

P
age 40



What are the main barriers we 
need to overcome? 
Fear and Shame
The new Early Help model must remove stigma 
and be accessible to all. It must inspire hope 
and positivity, so that families aren’t scared or 
embarrassed to engage when they need to.

Wrong Time, Wrong Place
Families want Early Help support that is closer to 
home, preventing the need for costly travel and
transport. Wirral communities want groups and 
activities that are inclusive for the whole family
and that take place throughout the week, including 
evenings, weekends and school holidays so that
work and other commitments are not a barrier.

Communicating Too Late, or Not at All 
Communication about what’s out there must 
improve. Many parents have expressed their 
frustration that they didn’t know what support was 
out there until their problems had escalated.

Diagnosis-dependant support
Families want a true diagnosis that supports them 
to understand, provide for and access support for 
their child which is led by the individual needs of 
their children and family.

52 53

CONCLUSIONS 

What does an improved model 
of Early Help need to address?
An Early Help offer in Wirral needs to address a 
range of family challenges, particularly:

Poor mental health, for both children and adults

Social isolation 

Supporting a child with additional needs, 
particularly pre-diagnosis

Managing times of human transitions, 
particularly:

Becoming a new parent (e.g. classes that 
prepare you for the reality of life with a 
new baby)

Starting a new school

Coping with bereavement and loss

Domestic abuse in the family

The impact of trauma across the life cycle

1. Families do not want to be frightened 

2. Families do not want to lose confidence or feel 
ashamed about their problems 

3. Families do not want to be ‘done to’ 

4. Families do not want the blame to be placed on 
their children 

5. Families do not want to sit on a waiting list or 
be told their situation is not ‘severe’ enough 

6. Families do not want a scattergun approach  
to referrals, they want to be considered  
as individuals

“An empowering model that builds on my 
strengths and offers me and my family the 
knowledge and tools to help myself and others 
around me.”

“Help that doesn’t look or feel like a statutory 
service: fear-free, delivered by someone I can 
develop a personal relationship with, in an 
environment where I am comfortable  
and welcome.”

“Quick, immediate help, close to my home, so 
that transport does not become a barrier. Make 
my first contact count and ideally, let me access 
support under one roof, before our challenges  
are overwhelming.”

“More opportunities to build meaningful social 
connections with people in my community in a 
similar life situation to me so that we can share 
our experiences and support each other.”

The aim of this report was to pull together the 
experiences of children and families across Wirral 
in order to understand what they want and need 
from an effective Early Help service in the future. 

There wasn’t a single person that we spoke to 
who said they had never asked for help. Many 
had sought support from those around them, 
and this had prevented everyday challenges from 
escalating into issues which could have had the 
potential to consume or overwhelm their lives. 
Feeling connected to and supported by other 
people in the community is absolutely key; Early 
Help must build and nurture relationships.

What families DO NOT want

What do families want Early 
Help to be like?

Empower me

Communicate 
with me 

Connect meInspire me

Be local to me

Support my 
whole family

“Change the language around Early Help – it is 
there to hold you up. It sounds like you only get 
a ‘referral’ when there is a problem, but we all 
need help at some points in our lives.”

“Great communication so I know what support 
is out there and do not have to keep repeating 
my story to different organisations and 
professionals.”

“Aspirational experiences that my whole family 
can take part in, together.”

“Services and organisations that listen to  
what I need and want and respond flexibly  
and creatively.”

“Experiences that help my mum and dad to  
look after themselves so that they can look 
after me.”

“Young people are given room for second chances 
and experiences that build my confidence, so I 
believe in myself.”

P
age 41



54 55

This will be a radical departure from the current 
Early Help service and it is not a straightforward 
shift. Over the next 12 months, Capacity will 
work with partners across the community to:

Co-design a new model with communities, 
funders and the Local Authority. 

Test what works before rolling out larger 
scale pilots.

Develop a collective funding model 
that increases the investment available 
to Early Help and powers a more 
collaborative, responsive way of  
working across communities.

Explore how technology can maximise the 
impact of Early Help. 

SO, WHAT NEXT?

P
age 42



56 57

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
Capacity: The Public Services Lab would like to 
offer our sincere thanks to all the parents, carers, 
young people and members of the community who 
shared their experiences with the team, without 
whom this report would not be possible.

The case studies in this report come from direct 
conversations between members of the Wirral 
community and Capacity’s staff team. Names 

Capacity was founded in 2015 from a unique 
partnership between Catch22, Amberside Advisors, 
Interserve PLC and Big Society Capital. Our mission 
is to rethink public services by: 

Supporting voluntary sector organisations 
to secure funding, run efficiently and design 
person-centred services. 

Partnering with commissioners to make public 
sector contracts more accessible to voluntary 
sector organisations.

Working with philanthropic funders to ensure 
brilliant organisations have the funding they 
need to support our communities both now and 
into the future. 

Since its incorporation, Capacity has secured more 
than £38.5 million in commissioned contracts and 
£1.5 million in grant funding for charities and social 
enterprises in England and Wales. In early 2019, we 
secured a second round of investment of £800,000 
from Big Society Capital. By April 2019, we had 
secured contracts to provide business support 
for fifty GP practices in the Liverpool City Region, 
as well as taking over management of three GP 
surgeries in Wrexham, Wales in conjunction with 
Community Care Collaborative CIC. 

Ultimately, Capacity exists to improve outcomes 
for every individual by building happy, healthy and 
resilient communities.

For more information about Capacity, visit capacitylab.co.uk. 

For more information about Early Help in Wirral visit
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/childrens-social-care/early-help

or
https://www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk/professionals/what-is-early-help/

This report contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0.

ABOUT THE AUTHORS 

and identifiable information have been changed 
to preserve anonymity. Whilst each person’s 
experiences and opinions have been recounted 
with as much accuracy as possible, due to the 
nature of unstructured question and answer 
conversations, some sentences have been 
reconstructed to allow individuals’ stories to be 
told fluidly and in first person.

P
age 43



NOTES

58 59

P
age 44



capacitylab.co.uk

Supported by

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY MATTERS
Now let’s make stuff happen. 

Now is the time to look at how we bring about effective and lasting change to communication and 
engagement across Early Help services in Wirral. Key to this is a strategic and borough wide approach that 
builds on both

a) The rich insight we gained from the Community Matters insight project 
b) The opportunity we have to establish a family ’coaching culture’ and pilot a central ‘brand’ 

When thinking about communication and the types of changes families want to see, the insight project gave us 
five themes for potential simple and effective interventions; pieces of work that involve practical action that 
can happen quickly, align with the Council’s aims and objectives and which we can jump straight into through 
Capacity’s diverse skill set.

Theme One: We need to communicate with people where they are, in a language that they hear

How do we do this? Together with the WMBC team we will develop a branding and communications 
strategy and project to unite the key strands of early help support across Wirral. 

What might this look like? A brand that can be utilised as a kitemark to show a ‘coming together’ of the 
early help sector in its many different guises. With shared branding and language, we can ensure that 
those commissioned in this area of work (or even voluntarily funded in this area of work) feel like, and 
look like, they are part of one-system. 

Theme Two: We must ensure a ‘strength-based’ and ‘community-led’ approach is bought-into across 
the system

How do we do this?  We establish an engagement and culture change project within Wirral’s public sector 
– integrating an approach that focuses on empowerment and aspiration for professionals and the people 
they support. 

What might this look like?  The development of plans for a leadership training and development 
programme for managers across the sector in both the public sector and VCSE. Work to ‘rediscover the 
values’ of early help in Wirral leading into joint values-based recruitment across the sector. Running this 
alongside an internal engagement and communications campaign to keep the brand active and relevant 
in people’s minds. 

Theme Three: We can make everyone’s life easier by making support simpler to access and engage 
with: 

How do we do this?  We design new tools and systems to drive people accessing support to the right 
place and we simplify local internal organisational processes (alongside them) to support them to do this. 

What might this look like? A bespoke mobile accessible website that pulls data from a range of sources, 
offering information, toolkits of support and listings of activities. Creating an online ‘one-stop-shop’ for 
sharing basic family data and self-referring into services. Allowing families, to register for support 

Page 47



activities, attend them and review and recommend them to friends. To meet the needs of families this 
must be inclusive of 

i. A searchable database of activities and events
ii. Streamlined referral pathways with secure logins 

iii. Self-assessments tools as part of registration 
iv. The ability to review services after each interaction with agencies on the system. 

Theme Four: Let us give families a way to share what works for them and play a key role in 
understanding impact, quality control and ultimately commissioning of early help services. 

How do we do this?  We create an approach to ensure families can be assured of quality and 
effectiveness of the projects and programmes they get involved with.

What might this look like? The aforementioned kitemarking within the brand is central to this alongside 
the ability within on and offline tools for families to: 

a. Review and recommend services, activities, events etc
b. Offer monitored feedback and ideas for gaps to deliverers and the public sector itself. 
c. Taking a ‘TripAdvisor’ approach to ratings -celebrating those that meet need in the most positive of 

ways. 
d. Capture and share the impact that experiences are having on their lives in an empowering way

Theme Five: Give communities the tools to make sure grassroots action can happen 

How do we do this?  We work with the Council to establish alternative approaches to procurement which 
allow smaller, local organisations (particularly community-led ones) to source funding and share their 
expertise. We support the growth and development of these communities, helping them make their 
ideas come to life. 

What might this look like?  A neighbourhood level coaching and peer mentoring programme for families, 
including coaching for those looking at setting up their own projects. The setup of ‘Family Community 
Champions’ in each of the super output areas. Sourcing and distributing grassroots funding – making this 
more accessible for smaller organisations/support groups who are trying to setup on a local level. 

Next Steps

Communications
Get things moving with a communications strategy and action plan 
Signed off strategy: October 2020
Signed off brand: December 2020
Brand soft launch: January 2020
Full launch:  April 2020

Design and develop an overarching project communications strategy and action plan including:

 Work with WMBC communications team and communications leads in other public and third sector 
organisations locally to establish a ‘community matters’ communications steering group 

 Complete a full communications audit across key audiences, including people using services, delivery 
organisations, commissioners and the wider VCSE sector. Focusing on:

o Channels of communication

Page 48



o Messaging and language
o Frequency of communication
o Audience segmentation

 Creative development of visual brand and common language (including a core copy house-style) and 
recommended key messages (all co-created with families)

o Agreeing our vision and ‘model’ for this brand
o Establishing a set of ‘brand ideals’ for the service
o Deciding on the architecture of brand – keeping things as simple as possible
o Designing a look and feel 
o Considering how this would work with a kitemark model 

 Utilise existing insight to segment audiences into groups with similarities including
o Families with similar features (whether that be geography, socio-economic status, family 

structure etc) 
o Direct professionals working in early-help delivery e.g. social work teams, CAMHS, VCSE 

partners 
o Indirect professionals who regularly ‘touch’ the early-help system and/or the families within 

it e.g. teachers, police, GPs.  
 Testing of visual brand, key messaging and communications channel mix (by audience)
 Creation of evaluation model and structure for the wider communications campaign.
 Oversight of communications action plan delivery 
 Direct project management of the development, production and distribution of the campaign 

(working alongside the WMBC team). 
 Copywriting and art-working time for all campaign collateral (inclusive of 2 rounds of amends where 

applicable)
 Supporting and promoting the adoption of a storytelling approach across the third sector and public 

sector
 Develop an internal culture and engagement campaign for professionals in direct and indirect contact 

with those receiving ‘early help’ 
 Production of print and other physical promotional collateral.
 Outdoor and transport advertising planning and management (ideally subsidised by WMBC owned 

outdoor media)
 Press launch and campaign
 Social Media targeted advertising
 Measurement of effectiveness and evaluation of the communications project:

o Qualitatively through project interviews across different audiences throughout and at the 
end of the work

o Quantitatively though social media ‘reach’ figures, brand recognition surveys and web click-
through rates. 

Digital Support Tools
Work with families to design, test and build the digital tool that they want to use 
Design and prototyping: September-December 2020
Build and test: January-April 2021
Launch: May 2021

Produce a digital tool (under the new brand) that offers one access point for what families need:

 Co-create the digital tools through workshops, interviews and supported by secondary research. 
 Build and test process for prototype ideas.
 Develop design and technical briefs for the development of our 'digital tools' prototypes 

Page 49



 Support the digital developers around the detailed build of the digital tools (including customer 
journey and navigation). 

 Work with the wider team in WMBC, the community and other VCSE organisations to collate, write 
and structure online resources.  

 Digital development costs to create digital tools which have both a clean and effective user 
experience at the front end and secure back-end access (to maximise the potential for sharing basic 
referral data). Ideally creating one point of access for both people using the service and providers of 
services.

 Legal work to create contracts, MOUs and Ts&Cs for people being supported, the public sector and 
partner organisations around fully GDPR compliant low-level data sharing. 

 Creative time working with the digital developers on brand alignment
 Empowerment and quality control coming from families. 

Page 50



Appendix 4- Elements of the Early Help Model 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE & EDUCATION COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 20 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: DOMESTIC ABUSE STRATEGY
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR FOR CHILDREN, FAMILIES AND 

EDUCATION

REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides the Children, Young People and Education Committee with an 
introduction to the 5-year partnership strategy, Domestic abuse - No excuse. It provides an 
overview of the co-production process, strategic priorities, delivery plan, and phased 
approach to reducing domestic abuse whilst improving support for people affected. 

The report and strategy are aligned to priorities of Wirral Council’s Plan 2025:

- Working for brighter futures for our children, young people and their families by 
breaking the cycle of poor outcomes and raising the aspirations of every child in 
Wirral

- Working for safe and pleasant communities where our residents feel safe, and 
where they want to live and raise their families 

This matter affects residents across the borough.

This report does not relate to a key decision. 

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Children, Young People and Education Committee is requested to:

1. Support the partnership strategy Domestic abuse- No excuse.

2. Note and endorse the partnership delivery plan.

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 In Wirral during the period 01 February 2019 to 21 January 2020, there were 8,410 
individuals known to have been affected by domestic abuse. This includes 2,786 
who were victims, 2,844 perpetrators and 2,780 children who were referred to 
Children’s Services due to being impacted by domestic abuse. These individuals 
require access to a co-ordinated, accessible and effective support offer, which the 
partnership domestic abuse strategy will enable. 

1.2 Domestic abuse is an important issue for all public services, with far-reaching 
implications and high cost to both the public purse and life chances. A strategic 
approach to reduce the prevalence and impact of domestic abuse in Wirral requires 
a strong partnership strategy and delivery plan. 

1.3 The previous partnership strategy, Zero Tolerance to Domestic Abuse, was one of a 
suite of pledge strategies relating to the Wirral Plan 2020, which has reached its 
conclusion. There is a requirement to build on the work of the previous strategy with 
a new approach aligned to the Wirral Plan 2025. 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Not supporting the Domestic abuse – No excuse Strategy and Delivery Plan would 
lead to disconnection within the public services partnership and voluntary sector. 
Lack of co-ordination and direction would have a detrimental impact on residents of 
Wirral who are affected by domestic abuse. 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 It was agreed at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings held in November 
2019 that the new strategy for domestic abuse should be co-produced. It is 
highlighted by national bodies and research agencies, such as the Social Care 
Institute for Excellence (SCIE), that co-production can lead to better services for 
people, improved relationships at community level, better collaboration between 
organisations and contribute to financial savings. Most importantly, co-production 
creates a different relationship between those providing and receiving services, one 
based on the following principles:

(i) Equality- everyone has something to give and no person or organisation 
is more important than others;

(ii) Diversity- it should be easy for everyone to be part of co-production and 
it is important to include everyone; and

(iii) Access- it should be easy for everyone to take part in co-production 
activity. 

Page 54



3.2 As detailed in Section 8 of this report, co-production activity involved all members of 
the Domestic Abuse Alliance, local organisations delivering domestic abuse support, 
and 92 individuals who are or have been affected by domestic abuse. 

3.3 In addition to the co-production workshops and conversations, a number of activities 
were completed to inform the strategy, as follows:

3.3.1 Data collation and analysis
To understand the prevalence of domestic abuse across Wirral and demand for 
services, a 12-month analysis of data was undertaken. This covered the period 01 
February 2019 to 31 January 2020, providing a recent sample, but without any 
disturbance to regular trends through Covid-19 lockdown period. The analysis 
provided valuable information on victims, perpetrators, impact on children, 
characteristics of those affected, and highlighted some key areas that the strategy 
addresses. 

3.3.2 Learning Review
A thorough review of a ‘typical’ case was undertaken to fully consider the experience 
of a victim of domestic abuse through the statutory child protection process. The 
review considered how well professionals understood the impact of domestic abuse 
on the victim and child, as well as the extent to which the parent was able to engage 
in the statutory process. The parent provided a full and detailed account of their 
experience, and this learning has informed the strategy. 

3.3.3 Outcomes and Dataset
A task and finish group has considered a revised dataset which will provide 
meaningful key performance information to the Domestic Abuse Alliance. It is 
intended that in addition to ‘hard data’, an ‘Outcomes Star’ will be used for both 
children and adults to provide insight into their experience and how it changes 
through support and intervention. The task and finish group also analysed the 
academic outcomes for children living in a family affected by domestic abuse. They 
found that there is a gap of over 30% in achievement at Key Stage 4 and specific 
activity to address this is detailed within the strategy and delivery plan. 

3.3.4 Resources
An overview of existing resources has been collated, outlining the Local Authority 
and partnership resource as well as the Local Authority’s current commissions for 
domestic abuse services. 

3.3.5 Inspection Readiness
The Domestic Abuse Alliance notes that the partnership offer for domestic abuse will 
be subject to scrutiny though a range of inspection processes, including Ofsted, 
CQC and JTAI (Joint Targeted Area Inspection). It is the intention of the Domestic 
Abuse Alliance, through a task and finish group, to ensure that the strategy, delivery 
plan and partnership are inspection-ready.

3.4 The Domestic abuse – No excuse strategy is written ‘to’ people affected by domestic 
abuse. This is a deliberate shift in format from previous strategies, and a direct result 
of the co-production approach. The strategy is purposefully written to make it 
accessible and meaningful to those people in Wirral who are victims, survivors, 
perpetrators, their children, friends and family. 

Page 55



3.5 The ambition of the strategy is as follows:

We want to Wirral to be a place where as few people as possible are affected by 
domestic abuse, but those who are can get help to end the abuse and go on to live 
the lives they want.

3.6 The ambition will be realised by focussing on five priorities: 
 

1. Be there when we’re needed 
2. Increase safety for those at risk, without adding to their trauma 
3. Reduce opportunities for perpetrators to abuse 
4. Support people to live the lives they want after harm occurs 
5. A better, kinder future for the next generation

3.7 For each priority the strategy details why these are priorities and how we will address 
them. The delivery plan provides further information on the activity to be undertaken 
in relation to each priority.

3.8 This is a 5-year strategy which will be delivered in 3 phases, as follows:

3.8.1 Years 1 & 2 – Transformation Phase
Activity in this phase will focus on improving our response, standardising practice, 
workforce development and implementing new approaches and delivery models. 

3.8.2 Year 3 – Adjustment Phase
Activity in this phase will focus on learning from the previous phase, evaluating 
pilots, implementing findings from service reviews, and transferring leadership from 
services to Peers and Supporters. 

3.8.3 Years 4 & 5 – Embedding Phase
Activity in this phase will focus on getting it right consistently, delivering high quality 
services, and increasing the pace and intensity of media campaigns for long-term, 
sustainable cultural change. 

3.9 Co-production will continue throughout the 5-year plan by establishing Voice Groups 
that are led by Peers, an online forum to update on progress, and membership of the 
Domestic Abuse Alliance including lay members with personal experience. In 
addition, an email account wecantalkaboutit@wirral.gov.uk has been activated to 
allow feedback or comments at any time. 

3.10 The Domestic Abuse Alliance will provide oversight of the strategy and delivery plan. 
Governance will be provided through the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Arrangements, 
with scrutiny provided by the Children, Young People and Education Committee and 
the Adult Health and Care Committee. Reports will be provided to Safer Wirral 
Partnership, Health and Wellbeing Board, and the Partnership for Children and 
Families as requested. 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The first two years of the strategy are described as a Transformation phase, as there 
is significant activity planned to introduce new approaches, standardise practice and 

Page 56

mailto:wecantalkaboutit@wirral.gov.uk


invest in workforce development. External funding is being sourced to deliver pilots, 
through the National Lottery, Community Safety Partnership, What Works for 
Children’s Social Care, Police and Crime Commissioner and Violence Reduction 
Unit.

4.2 Additional funding will be required to enable workforce development, system learning 
and practice improvement during the Transformation Phase. It is intended to submit 
an application for Capital Funding as an Invest to Save approach. At present the 
Council spends £424k on domestic abuse services, which would appear to be 
significant underinvestment. In the Transformation Phase a thorough cost modelling 
exercise and needs analysis will be completed to understand funding requirements. 

4.3 The Children’s Joint Commissioning Forum and Clinical Commissioning Group will 
be asked to provide a funding contribution to the Transformation Phase, based on 
learning from the cost modelling and needs analysis work. 

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are a number of commissioned services for domestic abuse which will be 
reviewed as part of the commissioning cycle, being informed by the needs of the 
Partnership Offer. This will take place within the existing timeframes for contract 
renewal and use the existing Council Procurement processes. 

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 The Council’s resource for domestic abuse will be reviewed in year 1. This includes  
the Family Safety Unit, which provides Independent Domestic Violence Advocates 
and co-ordinates the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) and the 
Safer Wirral Hub Early Intervention Team, which has Family Workers and Police 
Community Safety Officers (PCSOs) delivering early help interventions. A formal 
consultation and review will take place, working with Human Resources and Trade 
Union colleagues to deliver a more effective service as per the agreed partnership 
offer. 

6.2 Engagement with Merseyside Police regarding the PCSO resource have 
commenced. Merseyside Police are committed to the partnership approach and the 
role and responsibilities of the PCSOs will be considered as part of the formal 
review. 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 Failing to deliver the strategy will be mitigated through management oversight and 
scrutiny arrangements. Oversight of the strategy and delivery plan will be provided 
by the partnership’s Domestic Abuse Alliance. It is essential that the forum has the 
correct membership for relevant agencies at a senior level, with appropriate 
arrangements for Chairing, Vice-Chair and administration. 

Page 57



7.2 An extraordinary meeting of the Domestic Abuse Alliance will be held in November 
2020 to review membership, chairing arrangements, performance management, and 
relevant sub-groups, as per detail in the delivery plan. 

7.3 It is necessary to acknowledge the current financial pressures facing the Council and 
its partners as a risk. Any future funding discussion must consider cost-benefit 
analysis and the need for invest to save approaches. Domestic abuse has wide 
reaching detrimental impact on health, mental health, housing, Criminal Justice 
System, children’s outcomes, unemployment and adult health and care systems. The 
Home Office report, The Economic and Social Cost of Domestic Abuse (2019), 
estimates the cost of physical and emotional harm to victims in the UK equates to 
£47 billion annually. The report states that the next highest cost, of £14 billion 
annually, is for lost output relating to time taken off work and reduced productivity 
afterwards. 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The Domestic abuse – No excuse strategy has been co-produced. Initial 
engagement with people affected by domestic abuse commenced in February 2020. 
The planned schedule of activity, which was outlined to the Children and Families 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in February 2020 had to be revised due to Covid-
19 and lockdown conditions. The Domestic Abuse Alliance agreed for local voluntary 
sector organisations to undertake co-production activity on its behalf as these groups 
have continued, Covid-secure contact with people affected by domestic abuse. 

8.2 Over the months, July-August 2020, five local voluntary organisations engaged with 
92 individuals on behalf of the Domestic Abuse Alliance. Each organisation used a 
standard presentation and collection tool to gather feedback, views and experience 
in relation to the priority areas. In addition, participants were asked for input on 
branding, straplines, Voice groups and how they would like to continue to be involved 
in co-production. The contribution by service users was of excellent quality and has 
had significant influence on the final strategy. 

8.3 During August 2020, professionals and volunteers from a range of local services and 
organisations took part in four workshops, using the standard presentation and 
approach as with the service-user groups. The feedback from these workshops was 
collated and merged with that from service-users to confirm the strategic priorities 
and outline activity to be included in the delivery plan. 

8.4 It is the intention of the Domestic Abuse Alliance to hold, when safe to do so, a 
partnership event to launch the strategy, involving all those who have contributed. 

8.5 Co-production will continue throughout the lifespan of the strategy and is detailed 
within the Participation section of the delivery plan. 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 It is recognised that a disproportionate number of victims of domestic abuse have 
protected characteristics of the nine groups protected under the Equality Act 2010. A 

Page 58



full Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for the strategy and delivery 
plan and can be found via the following link:

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-
assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2017-1

9.2 The strategy recognises the need to further explore the prevalence of domestic 
abuse in underrepresented groups such as those with special educational needs and 
disabilities, elderly residents, those in LGBQT groups, and those living in more 
affluent areas. It is intended that expertise is secured from within existing 
organisations to advise on any adaptations to the support offer and services. 

10.0 ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no environmental and climate implications arising from this report. It is 
anticipated that the domestic abuse strategy will have no impact on the emission of 
greenhouse gases. 

REPORT AUTHOR: Elizabeth Hartley
Assistant Director: Early Help & Prevention
elizabethhartley@wirral.gov.uk
0151 666 4238

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Domestic abuse – No excuse Strategy 2020-25  
Appendix 2 – Domestic abuse – No excuse Delivery Plan 2020-25 

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Economic and Social Cost of Domestic Abuse, The Home Office (January 2019) can 
be accessed at www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-economic-and-social-costs-of-
domestic-abuse 

The previous domestic abuse strategy, delivered through the Wirral Plan: A 2020 Vision, 
can be accessed at https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/wirral-plan-2020-vision/wirral-
plan-strategies#overlay-context=about-council/wirral-plan-2020-vision 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Children and Families Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Children and Families Overview & Scrutiny Committee

November 2019

February 2020

Page 59

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2017-1
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments/equality-impact-assessments-2017-1
mailto:elizabethhartley@wirral.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-economic-and-social-costs-of-domestic-abuse
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-economic-and-social-costs-of-domestic-abuse
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/wirral-plan-2020-vision/wirral-plan-strategies#overlay-context=about-council/wirral-plan-2020-vision
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/about-council/wirral-plan-2020-vision/wirral-plan-strategies#overlay-context=about-council/wirral-plan-2020-vision


Page 60



 

 
Domestic abuse - No excuse. 

Wirral 2020-25  

 

 

Page 61



If you are a victim of domestic abuse it is not your fault. You 

are not to blame and you are not alone. There are many 

others in your situation and help is available.  
 

If you are a child or young person reading this and you are 

living with violence at home, or have in the past, you are not 

alone. There are people you can trust to help you, and your 

loved ones.  

 

If you are someone who is harming a family member or 

partner (current or ex) through violence, abuse or control, 

you need to stop. There are people who can help you to 

change.  

 

If you are worried that a friend, colleague, family member, 

neighbour, or employee is affected by domestic abuse there 

are people you can talk to. It’s normal to be worried about 

‘interfering’ or what might happen but talking about it will 

help.  

 

For everyone affected by domestic abuse, this document 

outlines a commitment from your local services and 

organisations to help end the abuse, support you to recover 

and go on to live the life you want.  

If we can talk about it, we can start to make the change.  

 

Page 62



There are many different types of abuse 

Domestic abuse is any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive or threatening 

behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 16 or over who are, or have been, 

intimate partners or family members regardless of gender or sexuality. This includes 

honour-based violence, female genital mutilation and forced marriage. 

Honour-based violence, female genital mutilation and forced marriage are known 

collectively as Harmful Practices. They are forms of violence which have been committed, 

mainly against women and girls, in certain communities and societies for so long that they 

are considered, or presented by perpetrators, as part of accepted cultural practice. Although 

they are forms of domestic abuse they often require a different response from services and 

communities, and to help ensure that we offer the right support, we will co-produce a 

separate Harmful Practices Strategy which will be linked with this one.  

This strategy focuses on helping people affected by the following types of abuse: 

• Controlling behaviour: This is a range of acts designed to make a person inferior or 
dependent by not allowing you to see family or friends; controlling your finances; making 
you feel trapped; someone monitoring where you go and what you do; tracking your mobile 
phone; making you feel that if you speak out no one will believe you; pressurising you to 
become pregnant; always having to abide by someone else’s rules.  

• Coercive control: This is an act or a pattern of acts of assault, threats, humiliation and 
intimidation or other abuse that is used to harm, punish, or frighten you. 

• Emotional/psychological abuse: This type of abuse can be described as someone who 
constantly stalks you either at home, work or outside; makes constant threats to harm or 
punish you, your children, a family member or pet; threaten to ‘out’ you for people in 
intimate relationships that identify as LGBT+; constantly belittles you; mocking your 
disability; accusing you of lying or making you feel mentally confused.  

• Sexual abuse: This can include pressuring you to have sex; making unwanted sexual 
demands that degrade and humiliate you; threatening to post or share sexual images of you 
(including via social media); hurting you during sex; forcing you to have sex with others; 
forcing you to do anything sexual against your will, including watching or looking at sexual 
material; not taking no for an answer is rape, even if you are married.  

• Physical abuse: Types of physical abuse can include: slapping; kicking; punching; pushing; 
biting; burning; strangulation/choking/suffocation; use of weapons; denying you your 
medication and essential aids or equipment; involving others in the abuse. 

• Financial abuse: Financial abuse can be described as your partner or family member: taking 
all your money/benefits/income; giving you a small allowance to live on; forcing you to take 
out multiple loans in your name; taking control of the household income. 

All of the above are forms of abuse. All are damaging.  

Page 63



What we know about domestic abuse in Wirral (2019-20) 

 
2,037 women and 749 men 
were the victim of a domestic abuse 

crime in Wirral  

 
In almost 50% of domestic  

abuse crimes the  

perpetrator was an  
ex-partner 

 
There were  

997 high risk referrals  
to the Multi Agency Risk Assessment 

Conference (MARAC) 

 

Outcomes for children 
living with domestic abuse were  
31-34% lower than their peers at  

Key Stage 4 

 
 

There were 275 perpetrators with  

multiple victims 

 
 

834 individuals were the victim of 

more than one domestic 
abuse crime 

 
 

In only 20.2% of cases did the  

victim and perpetrator 
 live at the same postcode 

 
 

Repeat Victimisation Rate  
was 29% in Wirral 

and 31% Nationally 

 

2,780 children  
referred to Children’s Services 

because of domestic abuse 

 

705 women and 2,128 men  
were recorded as perpetrators of 

domestic abuse 

 

Page 64



It’s time for change 

Previously our partnership took a zero tolerance approach to domestic abuse. 

Our intentions were good, we wanted domestic abuse to end, however, we 

have learned that it made people feel as though we took an ‘all or nothing’ 

stance-if you told a professional about domestic abuse you had to be prepared 

to end the relationship, leave your home or risk being accused of collusion. 

This sometimes meant that people waited longer than they should’ve to reach 

out for help. We want anyone affected by domestic abuse to know that it’s ok 

to talk about it- we will listen, we will give you choices, we will support you to 

be in control.  

We are recognising that everyone’s situation is different, and a one-size-fits-all 

approach does not work. It’s time for our partnership to be flexible in how we 

work, and recognise that people are more than a victim or perpetrator, that 

they are a person, member of a family, part of a community, and we need to 

be more holistic in our approach. Supporting the wider family can make a big 

difference in achieving longer-term change and better outcomes for everyone.  

We have learned from local people’s experience and national studies that the 

riskiest time for any victim of domestic abuse is immediately after the 

perpetrator has left or the relationship has ended. Where we have previously 

ended our support because the perpetrator is out of the house, we will not 

leave until we are reassured by the victim, and their children if they are 

parents, that they feel safe and have a strong network of support.  

We know we need to do more to challenge and change the behaviour of 

perpetrators, rather than just focus all of our efforts on dealing with the 

impact of the abuse. The gap in service provision for perpetrators impacts on 

victims and children every day.  

The impact of domestic abuse is far-reaching, causing a ripple effect into all 

parts of a person’s life, health, financial stability, education, and mental 

wellbeing. Public services, community and private sector organisations need to 

work together to make a change. Data, statistics, public spending and the voice 

of the people affected, all tell us that it is time for change- no excuse.  

 

 

Page 65



Our commitment to you 

The people who work with you have a responsibility to safeguard children and 

adults at risk. It is our duty, and there are statutory guidelines we must follow 

to do this. By working together, we can meet our responsibilities, keeping you 

and other vulnerable people safe.  

Occasionally we may need to take action that can be difficult for those 

involved to accept. In these cases, we ask for understanding and trust that 

what we do is in the best interest of protecting children or adults at risk. We 

will always endeavour to help people understand what is happening, what the 

process involves, to be included in decision-making and kept informed. We 

want to work together in every case.  

For people who feel they need extra support to understand child or adult 

protection processes advocacy can be made available.  

You can find more information about our statutory responsibilities at  

www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk for children and 

www.merseysidesafeguardingadultsboard.co.uk for adults at risk.  

 

Our Ambition 

We want to Wirral to be a place where as few people as possible are affected 

by domestic abuse, but those who are can get help to end the abuse and go on 

to live the lives they want.  

We hope to turn our ambition into a reality by focussing on five priorities: 
 
1. Be there when we’re needed 
2. Increase safety for those at risk, without adding to their trauma 
3. Reduce opportunities for perpetrators to abuse 
4. Support people to live the lives they want after harm occurs 
5. A better, kinder future for the next generation 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 66

http://www.wirralsafeguarding.co.uk/
http://www.merseysidesafeguardingadultsboard.co.uk/


Priority 1: Be there when we’re needed  
 
We’ve listened to the experiences of local people and what we’ve learned is: 

• Telling someone about domestic abuse can be really hard 

• Timing is important- when people are ready to talk they need someone 

ready to listen, and not to pass them on to someone they’ve never met  

• Too many victims feel that they are met with judgement and criticism, as 

though it’s their fault  

• Having a safe place to go, and people who know what you’re going 

through makes a big difference 

“I wish there had been somewhere like that [a hub] when I was going 

through it. I made so many doctors appointments to get help, but the 

appointment would come round and I’d never go. If I could’ve just walked in 

and been able to talk to someone straight away, I might have left sooner.” 

 

Being there when we are needed means: 

✓ We will work together to provide help no matter who you are or what 

your circumstances might be, whether this is the first time it’s happened 

or the twentieth, whether it happened today or months ago, whether 

you want to speak with someone face-to-face or anonymously.  

✓ We will introduce a ‘no wrong door’ approach across services and 

organisations in Wirral so that no matter who you ask for help you get it 

and are treated with respect and understanding.   

✓ We will work together to give you places to go and people to speak to 

who know what you’re going through. 

✓ We will make greater efforts to wrap around children who have been 

affected by domestic abuse to ensure they can attend education, take 

part, learn and socialise, as well as get the emotional support they need 

for good mental wellbeing.  

✓ We will look harder and listen closer to those people who may be at an 

increased risk of abuse but are unable to speak out, including older 

people who may be abused by adult children or their care-givers 

 

Page 67



Priority 2: Increase safety for those at risk, without adding 

to their trauma 

We’ve listened to the experience of local people and what we’ve learned is: 

• Too often victims of domestic abuse feel revictimised by statutory 

services and processes- losing their homes, their jobs, support networks, 

and in some cases, custody of their children 

• Small measures like new door and window locks can make a big 

difference  

• Too few victims had worked with a professional to complete a domestic 

abuse risk assessment and safety plan 

• Parents know that workers will prioritise protecting children, but too 

often feel that the responsibility to keep children safe sits entirely with 

the victim 

“Keeping a victim in their children in their own home and feeling safe is a 

longer-term solution that gives them stability and resilience. Moving every 

time the perpetrator finds them raises risk, moving schools is not the 

solution for all cases. If you can help victims to feel safe, they can then act 

safe.” 

Increasing safety for those at risk, without adding to their trauma means: 

✓ We will involve those of you who wish to share your experience in the 

training of workers and wherever possible, the delivery of services 

✓ We will work together to ensure that victims have the choice to stay at 

home or move, and where they wish to stay at home they are supported 

to do so safely  

✓ We will establish a support network for your friends and family (victims, 

survivors and perpetrators) so that they can be there for you now and in 

the future  

✓ We will provide specialist advice/advocacy and target hardening 

measures, such as new locks, to victims who believe it will help to make 

them safer  

✓ We will work with all services in Wirral to ensure they have a domestic 

abuse champion in their team who can work with you to complete a risk 

assessment and safety plan 

Page 68



Priority 3: Reduce opportunities for perpetrators to abuse 

We’ve listened to the experiences of local people and what we’ve learned is: 

• Too many victims of domestic abuse feel that it never ends, especially 

when perpetrators use child contact as a means to continue controlling 

and manipulative behaviour 

• Support for victims through criminal justice processes and Family Courts 

is inconsistent and can lead to them feeling exposed and revictimised 

• Violence and abuse from ex-partners is increasing  

• Lack of behaviour change programmes for perpetrators means that they 

are not effectively challenged to stop  

• Clare’s Law (Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme), which allows a 

member of the public to ask the Police if a partner poses a risk to them, 

is not widely known, understood or used 

“I spent years of my life being dragged to court by a perpetrator who only 

wanted to have control over our life.” 

 

Reducing opportunities for perpetrators to abuse means: 

✓ We will improve the lives of victims, and their children if they have 

them, by introducing an evidence-based programme for perpetrators of 

domestic abuse, available to anyone who wants help to stop abusing 

their partner (current or ex) 

✓ We will work together to strengthen our offender management 

approach and keep you safe 

✓ We will help your voice to be heard by the Criminal Justice System and 

Family Courts, by working alongside national organisations like Victim 

Support and Child and Family Court Advisory Support Service (CAFCASS) 

✓ We will help you to know your rights and access support as described in 

The Victim’s Code, helping you get Peer Support to help you through 

legal processes, and use schemes like Clare’s Law  

✓ We will listen to, and act on, the wishes and feelings of children and 

young people on their contact arrangements with parents  

Page 69



Priority 4: Support people to live the lives they want after 

harm occurs 

We’ve listened to the experiences of local people and what we’ve learned is: 

• Peer support on a 1:1 basis or in groups is valued 

• Counselling and specialist programmes can make a big difference to how 

well people recover from their experience  

• Rebuilding confidence, in yourself, other people, and ‘the system’ can be 

a major challenge 

• Too many people feel let down, that they have to ‘start over’ with very 

little in terms of belongings, finances and support 

 

“People say they understand but they don’t, how can they unless they know 

what it feels like to be so scared you can’t sleep and yet when someone asks 

you how you are you say you are fine. She [peer mentor] got it straight away 

and I knew it wasn’t just me.”  

 

Supporting people to live the lives they want after harms occurs means: 

✓ We will invest more in peer support and peer mentoring for all of you- 

victims, survivors, perpetrators, children and young people, friends and 

family  

✓ We will work together to make sure where you have to ‘start over’ you 

are well-supported to get the things you need for your home, your 

family and normal day-to-day life 

✓ We will work with our partners to provide you with tailored 

opportunities for lifelong learning and employment 

✓ We will work together as a partnership to increase access to recovery 

programmes and counselling in a variety of ways and locations 

✓ We will be grateful to learn from your experience and involve you in 

volunteering, supporting others, and/or contributing to service 

development  

 

Page 70



Priority 5: Create a brighter, kinder future for the next 

generation 

We’ve listened to the experiences of local people and what we’ve learned is: 

• Everyone involved wants domestic abuse to end 

• People believe that education is key to a better future 

• Those who are parents want their children to live safely and without 

stigma 

• Many people are worried that young people are exposed to negative 

messages about sex, relationships and respect 

“I grew up in a house where it was normal for my dad to hit my mum all the 

time and my mum would make excuses for him. I grew up thinking it was 

normal and I think that’s the reason I didn’t leave my abusive ex-partner 

sooner, I thought it was normal. I’m so glad my daughter did [a domestic 

abuse course for children] and understands that it’s not normal but not every 

child gets that, so it should be part of the curriculum just like maths or 

English.” 

Creating a brighter, kinder future for the next generation means: 

✓ We will work with ambition to remove the stigma attached to being a 

victim of domestic abuse  

✓ We will use your experience and voices of local people to raise 

awareness, encourage people to talk about domestic abuse and to get 

help 

✓ We will co-ordinate education programmes and learning for children, 

from pre-school to adulthood, on healthy relationships, kindness and 

respect 

✓ We will invite our local communities to work alongside us to understand 

domestic abuse and support our campaign to create a future free from 

violence and abuse 

✓ We will provide learning opportunities for workers, services, 

organisations and partners to help them to better help you and future 

generations 

 

Page 71



How we will deliver this strategy 

This is a 5-year partnership strategy, which we will deliver in 3 phases.  

Phase 1 (Years 1 & 2) - Transformation Phase  

In the first two years of this plan we will focus on improving your experience of 

support services, making it easier to access support and making sure there is 

help for everyone who needs it. We will invest in a large-scale workforce 

training on trauma informed practice to make sure that whomever you speak 

to, they respond in a helpful, non-judgemental way and have the information 

and tools at their fingertips to help.  

We will do some more work to engage with underrepresented groups, such as 

elderly, LGBQT, pregnant women, people with learning difficulties and 

disabilities and people living in more affluent areas, to understand how they 

are affected by domestic abuse and what help they need and make sure we 

have the necessary expertise within our workforce.  

We will begin longer-term media campaigns and engagement with the Criminal 

Justice System and Family Courts. 

We will pilot a number of new initiatives and co-ordinate education for 

children and young people.  

Phase 2 (Year 3) - Adjustment Phase 

In year 3 we will take stock of learning, evaluations of pilots, feedback, and 

service reviews from the transformation stage. We will reflect on our findings 

and make any necessary adjustments. We will support a transfer of leadership 

from services to Peers and Supporters.  

Phase 3 (Years 4 & 5) - Embedding Phase  

We expect to have confidence and assurance that we are doing the right things 

and have evidence that we’re making a positive difference to people’s lives 

and across communities. We will focus on making sure we’re getting it right 

time after time.  

We will increase the pace and intensity of our media campaigns, working hard 

for a lasting cultural change in Wirral. 

A delivery plan accompanies this strategy, giving further detail of activity and 

timescales.  

Page 72



Looking to the future  

Some of the things we want you to see and experience 2 years from now: 

• When someone asks for help (victim, survivor, perpetrator, child, friend 

or family member) they are met with a caring, understanding and 

informed response that gets them the help that they need 

• Children who have been affected by domestic abuse receive the help 

they need to ensure that their experience doesn’t have a long-term 

negative impact on their well-being or outcomes.  

• Survivors and peer mentors are improving services for people affected 

by domestic abuse through co-production and joint delivery 

• Support for victims of domestic abuse is victim-led, empowering and 

provides choice 

• Every agency has at least one domestic abuse champion who is able to 

risk assess and co-produce safety plans 

• All children and young people in the borough learn about domestic 

abuse, healthy relationships and respect 

• Greater understanding of and ability to identify coercive control 

 

Some of the things we want you to see and experience 5 years from now: 

• Far less victims, far less perpetrators, and far less incidents of domestic 

abuse 

• Less stigma attached to being the victim of domestic abuse 

• People are comfortable talking about domestic abuse  

• We feel assured that groups who are currently under-represented are 

able to be identified, access help and receive the support they need 

from people with the right expertise.  

• Victims of domestic abuse feel protected, have confidence in our 

management of perpetrators and do not get trapped in a cycle of abuse.  

• Through consistent public relation campaigns, residents and 

communities within Wirral stand together against domestic abuse.  

• The achievement gap, for children affected by domestic abuse and their 

peers, closes.  

Page 73



Living up to our commitment to you 

Your voice counts  

This strategy is the product of many conversations with different groups of 

people across Wirral. It is the first part of a five-year conversation.  

We ask all of you, regardless of who you are or what your experience is, to 

engage with us so that we can learn together and make strides towards a safer, 

healthier, happier Wirral for everyone.  

We will be establishing: 

- Voice Groups, led by Peers, to keep the conversations going 

- An online forum to keep you updated our progress 

- Membership on Wirral’s Domestic Abuse Alliance for people 

to represent victims, perpetrators, and their families 

At any time, you are welcome to share your views, experiences or information 

relating to domestic abuse services by emailing 

wecantalkaboutit@wirral.gov.uk  

 

Making sure we do what we’ve committed to  

We have a local Domestic Abuse Alliance, which has senior membership from 

across services and community groups, including the Children’s Services, Adult 

Health & Care Services, NHS, Public Health, schools and education providers, 

housing, voluntary and community sector, Police, probation, substance and 

alcohol services, and others. This group meets every 2 months and is 

responsible for making sure that the commitments outlined in this strategy are 

delivered.  

The Domestic Abuse Alliance is represented by an Assistant Director at the 

relevant Council Committees (the Children, Young People and Education 

Committee and the Adult Health and Care Committee), the Health and 

Wellbeing Board, and through the Multi Agency Safeguarding Arrangements 

for Children in Wirral and Adults in Merseyside.  

Committee Chairs and the Elected Member Champion for Domestic Abuse will 

work on your behalf to ensure that we do what we’ve committed to.  

 

Page 74

mailto:wecantalkaboutit@wirral.gov.uk


Concluding note from people affected by domestic abuse 

 

 

 

“Thank you for letting us share the 

voices of all in this.  

It is truly a great platform for good 

things to start taking place.” 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 75



We’re here to help 

Family Safety Unit 
To access support from an Independent Domestic Violence Advocate  
Call: 0151 666 4914 
 
Involve NW  
To access support from a peer mentor or domestic abuse programme 
Call: 0151 644 4500 
Email: info@involvenorthwest.org.uk  
 
Tomorrow’s Women 
To access 1:1 support or domestic abuse programme 
Call: 0151 6477907 
Or visit: @tomorrowswomen on twitter or Instagram 
 
Wirral Women and Children’s Aid (Wirral Refuge) 
To access support and advice from the refuge 
Call: 0151 643 9766 (24 hours) 
 
Rape and Sexual Abuse Centre 
For 1:1 support and advice 
Call: 0151 558 1801 
Email: westwirral@rasamerseyside.org  
 
WEB Merseyside Men Too 
To access support specifically for men 
Call: 0151 653 3771 
 
Paul Lavelle Foundation  
For support to male victims of domestic abuse 
Email: info@paullavellefoundation.co.uk  
 
Wirral Ways to Recovery 
To access support and recovery programmes for alcohol and substances 
Call: 0151 556 1335 
Email: wirral.services@cgl.org.uk 

Wirral Multi-Cultural Centre 
To access support, advice and advocacy for a range of issues 
Call: 0151 792 5116  
 

Support 4 Men 
To access 1:1 advice and support specifically for men 
Call: 0151 317 4333 
Email: info@support4men.co.uk 
 
Next Chapter Healthy Relationships Project  
For domestic abuse programmes and 1:1 advice on legal issues 
Call: 07368 601367 
 
There’s lots more information and advice on our partnership domestic abuse website, 

including contact information for National Charities and organisations 

www.itsneverokwirral.org  

Page 76

mailto:info@involvenorthwest.org.uk
mailto:westwirral@rasamerseyside.org
mailto:info@paullavellefoundation.co.uk
mailto:wirral.services@cgl.org.uk
mailto:info@support4men.co.uk
http://www.itsneverokwirral.org/


1 
 

 

 

 Domestic abuse - No excuse. 

Wirral 2020-25  

 

Partnership Delivery Plan  

 

  

P
age 77



2 
 

Our Ambition 

We want to Wirral to be a place where as few people as possible are affected by domestic abuse, but those who are can 

get help to end the abuse and go on to live the lives they want.  

 

We hope to turn our ambition into a reality by focussing on five priorities: 
 

1. Be there when we’re needed 
2. Increase safety for those at risk, without adding to their trauma 
3. Reduce opportunities for perpetrators to abuse 
4. Support people to live the lives they want after harm occurs 
5. A better, kinder future for the next generation  

 
We will deliver the Domestic abuse-No excuse strategy in 3 phases: 
 

Phase 1 (Years 1 & 2) – Transformation Phase 
Phase 2 (Year 3) – Adjustment Phase 
Phase 3 (Years 4 & 5) – Embedding Phase  
 

 
The strategy and delivery plan will be overseen by Wirral’s Domestic Abuse Alliance, with scrutiny provided by the 
Children, Young People and Education Committee and the Adult Health & Care Committee and governance from Wirral 
Safeguarding Children Partnership and Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board.  
 

  

P
age 78



3 
 

Partnership Offer for Domestic Abuse  
 

 

Reference Activity Priority Phase 1 
(Years 1-2) 

Phase 2 
(Year 3) 

Phase 3 
(Years4-5) 

Lead  

PO1 Review LA service offer and resource for domestic abuse 1 ✓ ✓ - Head of Service, Family 
Matters 

PO2 Review LA commissions for domestic abuse  1 ✓ ✓ - Assistant Director 
Children’s Services 

PO3 Define partnership offer- pre-commissioning, including 
peer support 

1 ✓ - - Operations Group Chair  

PO4 Define partnership offer- post commissioning, including 
peer support 

1 ✓ ✓ - Operations Group Chair 

PO5 Implement revised MARAC arrangements 2 ✓ - - Head of Service, Family 
Matters  

PO6 Establish hub and satellite access model 1 ✓ - - Operations Group Chair 

PO7 Secure expertise for under-represented groups  1 ✓ - - Assistant Director 
Children’s Services 

Workforce Development 
 

 

Reference Activity Priority Phase 1 
(Years 1-2) 

Phase 2 
(Year 3) 

Phase 3 
(Years4-5) 

Lead  

WD1 Develop training package for ‘no wrong door for 
domestic abuse’ with survivors  

1 ✓ - - Workforce Development 
Group Chair 

WD2 Deliver ‘no wrong door for domestic abuse’ with 
survivors 

1 ✓ - ✓ Workforce Development 
Group Chair 

WD3 Deliver DASH Risk Assessment and Safety Planning 
training to organisational Champions  

2 ✓ - ✓ Workforce Development 
Group Chair 

WD4 Refresher training on screening tools  
 

1 ✓ - ✓ WSCP Training Officer 

WD5 Review multi-agency training on domestic abuse with 
survivors, and for Peers 
 

1 ✓ - - WSCP Training Officer  

P
age 79



4 
 

New Practice Approaches 
 

 

Reference Activity Priority Phase 1 
(Years 1-2) 

Phase 2 
(Year 3) 

Phase 3 
(Years4-5) 

Lead  

PA1 Deliver a change programme for perpetrators of 
domestic abuse 
 

3 ✓ ✓ - Assistant Director 
Children’s Services  

PA2 Introduce a multi-agency forum to improve outcomes for 
children affected by domestic abuse  
 

1 ✓ - - Head of Service, Family 
Matters  

PA3 Implement pilot for Peers working in partnership with 
statutory services and families (We Can Talk About 
Domestic Abuse pilot) 
 

2 ✓ - - Assistant Director 
Children’s Services 

PA4 Design and implement a pilot for lifelong learning and 
employability 
 

4 ✓ ✓ - Head of Service, 
Learning and Skills 

System Learning  
 

 

Reference Activity Priority Phase 1 
(Years 1-2) 

Phase 2 
(Year 3) 

Phase 3 
(Years4-5) 

Lead  

SL1 Review Operation Encompass and implement change as 
required 

1 ✓ - - WSCP Manager 

SL2 Review effectiveness of the arrangements for Offender 
Management 

3 ✓ ✓ - Community Safety 
Partnership Chair 

SL3 Audit compliance with the Victim’s Code 3 ✓ - ✓ Community Safety 
Partnership Chair 

SL4 Undertake a study into the experience of under-
represented groups  
 

1 ✓ - - Assistant Director 
Children’s Services  

SL5 Undertake a study on effectiveness of perpetrator 
programmes 
 

3 ✓ - - Operations Group Chair 

P
age 80



5 
 

Education  
 

 

Reference Activity Priority Phase 1 
(Years 1-2) 

Phase 2 
(Year 3) 

Phase 3 
(Years4-5) 

Lead  

ED1 Appoint an Advisor to Co-ordinate Domestic Abuse 
Education 

5 ✓ - - Assistant Director 
Children’s Services  

ED2 Co-ordinate education offer for children and young 
people on domestic abuse, respect, healthy relationships 

5 ✓ ✓ ✓ Domestic Abuse 
Education Advisor 

ED3 Review commissioning for preventative health  5 ✓ - - Senior Public Health 
Consultant 

Participation  
 

 

Reference Activity Priority Phase 1 
(Years 1-2) 

Phase 2 
(Year 3) 

Phase 3 
(Years4-5) 

Lead  

PT1 Formalise partnership voice groups for victims, survivors, 
perpetrators, children and young people, friends and 
family 

1,2,3,4,5 ✓ - - Participation Group 
Chair 

PT2 Continued co-production activity 1,2,3,4,5 ✓ ✓ ✓ Assistant Director 
Children’s Services 

Influence 
 

 

Reference Activity Priority Phase 1 
(Years 1-2) 

Phase 2 
(Year 3) 

Phase 3 
(Years4-5) 

Lead  

IN1 Review membership on Domestic Abuse Alliance to 
include CAFCASS and national charities 

1,2,3,4,5, ✓ - - Domestic Abuse Alliance 
Chair 

IN2 Strengthen relationship with Safeguarding Adults Board  2,3,5 ✓ - - Domestic Abuse Alliance 
Chair 

IN3 Define and agree a policy for a ‘Tailored Safety Response’ 
with Community Safety Partnership, Housing, Police 

2 ✓ - - Assistant Director 
Children’s Services  

IN4 Establish a forum for regular communication with Family 
Courts to share learning and improve experience for 
people affected by domestic abuse  

2,4,5 ✓ - - Participation Group 
Chair  

P
age 81



6 
 

Communication 
 

 

Reference Activity Priority Phase 1 
(Years 1-2) 

Phase 2 
(Year 3) 

Phase 3 
(Years4-5) 

Lead  

CO1 Develop a communication plan for Domestic Abuse-No 
Excuse strategy 

1,2,3,4,5, ✓ - - Communications Lead 
for Domestic Abuse  

CO2 Deliver the communication plan  1,2,3,4,5, ✓ ✓ ✓ Domestic Abuse Alliance 
Chair  

C03 Develop a behaviour change campaign for domestic 
abuse 

5 ✓ - - Communication Lead for 
Domestic Abuse 

C04 Deliver the behaviour change campaign for domestic 
abuse 

5 ✓ ✓ ✓ Domestic Abuse Alliance 
Chair  

 

 

 

  

P
age 82



7 
 

Timeline  

Ref. Activity 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5 5.0 

PO1 Review LA service offer and resource for domestic abuse           

PO2 Review LA commissions for domestic abuse            

PO3 Define partnership offer- pre-commissioning, including peer support           

PO4 Define partnership offer- post commissioning, including peer support           

PO5 Implement revised MARAC arrangements           

PO6 Establish hub and satellite access model           

PO7 Secure expertise for under-represented groups            

WD1 Develop training package for ‘no wrong door for domestic abuse’ with survivors            

WD2 Deliver ‘no wrong door for domestic abuse’ with survivors           

WD3 Deliver DASH Risk Assessment and Safety Planning training to organisational Champions            

WD4 Refresher training on screening tools            

WD5 Review multi-agency training on domestic abuse with survivors, and for Peers           

PA1 Deliver a change programme for perpetrators of domestic abuse           

PA2 Introduce a multi-agency forum to improve outcomes for children affected by domestic abuse            

PA3 Implement pilot for Peers working in partnership with statutory services and families (We Can Talk About Domestic 
Abuse pilot) 

          

PA4 Design and implement a pilot for lifelong learning and employability           

SL1 Review Operation Encompass and implement change as required           

SL2 Review effectiveness of the arrangements for Offender Management           

SL3 Audit compliance with the Victim’s Code           

SL4 Undertake a study into the experience of under-represented groups            

SL5 Undertake a study on effectiveness of perpetrator programmes           

ED1 Appoint an Advisor to Co-ordinate Domestic Abuse Education           

ED2 Co-ordinate education offer for children and young people on domestic abuse, respect, healthy relationships           

ED3 Review commissioning for preventative health            

PT1 Formalise partnership voice groups for victims, survivors, perpetrators, children and young people, friends and family           

PT2 Continued co-production activity           

IN1 Review membership on Domestic Abuse Alliance to include CAFCASS and national charities           

IN2 Strengthen relationship with Safeguarding Adults Board            

IN3 Define and agree a policy for a ‘Tailored Safety Response’ with Community Safety Partnership, Housing, Police           

IN4 Establish a forum for regular communication with Family Courts to share learning and improve experience for people 
affected by domestic abuse  

          

CO1 Develop a communication plan for Domestic Abuse-No Excuse strategy           

CO2 Deliver the communication plan            

CO3 Develop a behaviour change campaign for domestic abuse           

CO4 Deliver the behaviour change campaign for domestic abuse           

 

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE & EDUCATION COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 20 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: 2021/22 BUDGET PROCESS
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR FOR CHILDREN, FAMILIES & EDUCATION

REPORT SUMMARY

The report sets out for the Committee the process for budget setting as a transition year for 
2021/22 and describes the financial position of the council in 2021/22 which  at Quarter 1 
was deficit of £45m and the actions being put in place to mitigate the gap.

These actions are in 5 stages and include the timeline for the 2021/22 budget setting and 
when budget proposals will be presented to the Policy and Services Committees for the 
recommendation to Full Council to set the 2021/22 budget.

As this is a transition year, and given the tight timetable for the approval of the budget, 
Officers will provide initial proposals for consideration by the Committee. However, the 
Committee is encouraged to identify their own proposals for Officers to work up, to be 
included for the 2021/22 Budget.  For future years this will become the usual process and 
throughout the year the Committee will be identifying proposals for Officers to work up for 
the following years budget.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee consider the Council’s current financial position and process for the 
2021/22 budget in this transition year. 

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The Policy and Resources Committee have responsibility for approving budget 
options that will be recommended to Full Council to set the annual budget.  To 
enable the Policy and Resources Committee to recommend budget proposals to Full 
Council, the Committee needs to receive feedback from individual Committee’s on 
those proposals.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The budget proposals are not presented to the Committee for consideration and are 
presented directly to the Policy and Resources Committee. However, this will not 
provide the Committee with the opportunity to take ownership of the proposals or to 
feedback to the Policy and Resources Committee on the outcome of the debate.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Council must set a balanced budget by 10 March by law and the Local
Government Finance Act, 1988 places certain responsibilities on the Chief Finance 
Officer, namely Section 114 (3): “The chief finance officer of a relevant authority shall 
make a report under this section if it appears to him that the expenditure of the 
authority incurred (including expenditure it proposes to incur) in a financial year is 
likely to exceed the resources (including sums borrowed) available to it to meet that 
expenditure.”

2020/21 and 2021/22 CURRENT BUDGET POSITION

3.2 As reported at Quarter 1 the year-end forecast for the 2020/21 budget was an 
expected deficit of £30m.  Since then, further funding has been provided by 
Government and information has been received from Government on a 
compensation scheme for lost income from sales, fees and charges as a result of 
Covid-19.

3.3 Taking the new third tranche of funding received of £3.2m and an assumption of £9m 
compensation for lost income from sales, fees and charges, plus some further 
adjustments, the 2020/21 year-end deficit forecast has been reduced to £22m.

3.4 This deficit is made up of (main items): 

 £17m of unachievable original savings from the 2020/21 budget as a result of 
delays in progression caused by Covid.  These are:

o £5.0m new Council model and structure
o £4.55m Contract reviews and renegotiations
o £3.75m Adult Social Care reviews and efficiencies
o £1.27m Children’s Looked After Children reductions
o £2.5m New investments and refinancing
o £0.64m Zero Based Budgeting pilot

Page 86



 £6m residual income losses after an assumption for compensation from the 
government scheme for sales, fees and charges losses

 £2m of unachievable capital receipt sales as a result of delays in progression 
caused by Covid

 -£3m of forecast savings as a result of vacancies

3.5 The Council must take necessary remedial and urgent action to deal with the 
significant deterioration in the financial position and return to a balanced budget 
position. Failure to consider and adopt reduction measures to the 2020/21 budget or 
find further funding from Government or elsewhere within year, could result in the 
issuing of a s114 notice before year end. 

3.6 To mitigate this, the Council has requested permission from MHCLG to apply to HM 
Treasury on the Council’s behalf for a capitalisation directive.  This means that the 
Council can charge any unmet 2020/21 and potentially 2021/22 deficits specifically 
incurred as a result of Covid to the capital programme.  

3.7 As a consequence of the forecast deficit in 2020/21 there is an ongoing impact for 
the 2021/22 budget.  The unachievable savings that the Council is reporting that it is 
not able to make during 2020/21 are permanent savings and if not made in year, will 
still have to be made in 2021/22.  

3.8 In resetting the Medium Term Financial Plan at Quarter 1 there was a forecast 
budget gap in 2021/22 of £45m.  This was made up of (main items)

 £17m carried forward unachievable savings from 2020/21 (See above - If any of 
these can be mitigated in 2020/21, this value will reduce)

 £7m of existing pressures from contract, pay and levy increases  
 £9m new pressures from Adult Social Care, Children’s Social Care and 

Homelessness
 £7m assumed reductions of funding from Public Health
 £5m assumed loss of income from Sales, Fees and Charges continuing as a 

result of Covid

3.9 The total gap at Quarter 1 over the next two years was therefore £67m.  As new 
restrictions come into force to mitigate against rising infection numbers of Covid-19, 
this gap is forecast to increase.  Work is currently ongoing to quantify this; the 
assumption for loss of income and pressures in Children’s Social Care are already 
estimated to be significantly under forecast.

3.10 If HM Treasury allows the capitalisation directive to be approved, the deficit for 
2020/21 will be significantly reduced and can be offset by utilising some of the 
immediate actions listed below. If however the capitalisation directive is not approved 
then the full £22m would need to be found before 31 March 2021 in order to balance 
the budget.  

3.11 A rejection of the capitalisation directive would also mean that any savings already 
identified in immediate actions would not then be available for use towards the 
2021/22 budget.  This would result in much more difficult decisions being taken on 
the longer term actions, and if these do not meet the 2021/22 budget gap then could 
potentially result in the issuing of a s114 notice.

Page 87



Budget Deficit Mitigations

3.12 Since June, the Strategic Leadership team have been working towards identifying 
options to mitigate the overall deficit, through a programme of immediate actions and 
longer term actions to ensure the budget is sustainable for the future.  This ‘twin 
track’ approach ensures that any immediate quick wins will not be implemented at 
the detriment of any longer terms proposals that will generate future income or result 
in future cost avoidance.

3.13 The process to set a balanced budget for 2021/22 is described in 5 phases below:

Phase 1 – Immediate Actions
(a) Review of all 2020/21 unachievable savings to determine whether a 

proportion of these can be achieved
(b) Review of 2020/21 growth/pressures to determine as a result of Covid, 

whether any assumptions have changed and if all the growth/pressures are 
required

(c) Review of 2021/22 pressures to determine whether they are all still required 
and if so, at the same value

(d) Review of earmarked reserves to determine whether any can be clawed back 
to be used to support the 2021/22 budget

(e) Review of the 2020/21 budget forecasts to determine whether any savings as 
a result of Covid can be carried forward and used to contribute to the 2021/22 
budget

Phase 2 – Directorate Proposals
(a) The identification of short term options proposals for Members to balance the 

2021/22 budget from Officers.  This is a continuous process and Officers will 
continue to submit proposals up to and beyond December 2020

(b) The identification of medium to long term proposals to ensure the Council can 
be financially sustainable for the future.  This process is being twin tracked 
with (a) to ensure no duplication or contradiction. This is a continuous process 
and will carry on into the Financial Sustainability Programme once this is re-
established

Phase 3 – Categorisation of Proposals
An initial grouping of proposals into four themes to support evidence based decision 
making for Members:

1) An assessment of whether statutory services provided are efficient, and where 
they are not to submit efficiency proposals

2) An assessment of non-statutory services of whether they are providing beneficial 
outcomes that support cost avoidance and demand reduction in statutory 
services, and where they are not to submit proposals as to whether to continue 
with those services

3) An assessment of income generating services as to whether they can 
demonstrate a future return on investment, and where they cannot, to submit 
proposals as to whether to continue with those services

Page 88



4) An assessment of all back office functions to identify whether they are providing a 
value added service to support statutory and beneficial non-statutory services, 
and where they do not to submit proposals as to whether to continue with those 
services

Phase 4 – Corporate Challenge
A further breakdown of the four themes into 7 individual workstreams supported by a 
lead Officer to be accountable for ensuring progress against the workstreams.  The 
themes are being led by a corporate challenge process to ensure all areas of the 
Council have been considered:

1) Service savings
2) Service effectiveness
3) Income & Traded Services
4) Contracts
5) Assets
6) Workforce
7) Prevention Strategy

As a result of this challenge a series of programmes have been identified to 
commence/have commenced with the aim of reducing costs across the Council in 
the immediate, medium and long term.  These are:

 Review of effectiveness of specific back office services to ensure they are fit for 
purpose, adding value and taking full advantage of digitalisation

 A full Cost of Care exercise for Social Care commissioned services 
 A whole Council Prevention Strategy to reduce future demand and reduce costs
 A Zero/Outcomes Based Budgeting exercise to ensure resources are aligned to 

outcomes and only provided where beneficial outcomes aligned to the Council’s 
priorities can be evidenced

 A full establishment review to ensure staffing resources are aligned to the 
Council’s priorities, especially in light of additional capacity required following 
Covid-19

 A review of Adult Social Care pathways to ensure they are as efficient as they 
can be and are optimising and outcomes based care approach

 A strategy for reducing the cost of Looked After Children in the short to medium 
term while the Prevention Strategy can be implemented

 A review of the Council’s assets to ensure the Council is only holding assets that 
contribute to its priorities 

 Return on Investment modelling on the Council’s income generating activities to 
ensure investment is only provided where a future return can be demonstrated

 A review of all Council contracts and contract management functions to ensure 
services are only commissioned that contribute to the Council’s priorities and 
once commissioned are being managed effectively.

 The implementation of a new combined finance/HR/procurement critical business 
system 

Phase 5 – Contingency Plan
In the event of proposals generated by the first 4 themes do not equal the value of 
the budget gap, a contingency process is being developed.  Once all the proposals 

Page 89



from the first four themes have been received and evaluated and the gap has not 
been met, other proposals need to be considered. The Council is not able to not set 
a balanced budget by law and where Members are not able to identify proposals to 
meet the gap, this would mean that the expenditure of the Council outweighs its 
funding and the Section 151 Officer would be required to issue a Section 114 
statement.

The contingency plan is to identify for all services, how each service could continue 
with a 5%, 10% or 15% reduction in those budgets.  These proposals would indicate 
to Members what the reduced service would look like, what the implications would be 
and what the risks are likely to be.  In the event of not being able to bridge the 
budget gap with proposals from the first 4 phases of the process, Members would 
need to determine what level of risk they would be comfortable to accept in deciding 
to feedback to the Policy and Resources Committee on these phase 5 proposals.

This effective cut to services is high risk to the achievement of the Councils priorities 
and the Wirral 2025 plan as it will inevitably result in cuts in preventative services 
and in services and functions that will generate future savings and cost avoidance for 
the Council from additional income or reduced demand.

Comprehensive Spending Review

3.14 The Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) is where the 
Government decide where to spend its resources in the following year. The outcome 
of this for Local Government is the funding settlement where Councils get to hear 
whether their funding has been increased, stays the same or is being reduced for the 
following year.  The CSR was due to be take place ready for the 2020/21 budget 
planning process.  As a result of Brexit this was postponed and a one year 
settlement was provided.  This makes financial planning extremely difficult as 
temporary funding streams are uncertain and it is not known whether they will 
continue.  

3.15 As a result of Covid-19, the Government have stated that they will ‘do whatever it 
takes’ to ensure Local Authorities are funded adequately to support the response, 
however no information or announcement has yet been provided about the indirect 
impact of Covid-19 e.g. an assumed ongoing reduction in sales, fees and charges 
and additional expenditure which are contributing to new pressures in 2021/22.

3.16 As the Local Authority funding settlement is not due to be announced until December 
2020 it is very difficult to set the budget in advance. As a result, there is little choice 
at this stage to plan for a worst case scenario as statutory consultation needs to be 
considered within the budget setting timescale.

3.17 In the event of the award of a capitalisation directive and a more favourable 
settlement than planned for in the 2021/22 budget and beyond, the proposals put 
forward as part of the 2021/22 budget report can be adjusted after the settlement 
has been announced.

Page 90



4.0 PLANNING FOR THE 2021/22 BUDGET

4.1 During October to December, reports will be presented to the Policy & Resources 
Committee that update Members on changes to the budget gap.  The reports being 
presented to the Policy and Resources Committee up to the time the budget is set 
are:

 October: Covid-19 position statement
2021/22 Transitional budget process

 November: Budget update report

 December/January: Budget proposals to go out for public consultation

 January: Budget update report including the Government funding 
settlement

 February: 2021/22 Budget to be recommended to Full Council

4.2 The Council is in a position where it does not know, and will not know until 
December, what financial situation it will be fully facing for 2021/22. The Council will 
not receive a response to its request for a capitalisation directive from HM Treasury 
until late November and is unlikely to receive a revised local government financial 
settlement, in the light of the delayed Fair Funding Review and Covid budgetary 
approach from central Government, until December.

4.3 This means that the Committees are not in a position to fairly and fully propose 
funding options for consultation and recommendation to Council as a coherent legal 
and balanced budget for some weeks to come.

4.4 In the interim, Officers have been modelling scenarios and working with colleagues 
to test formed and unformed proposals and responses to these scenarios. When the 
situation becomes clear, proposals can be brought forward as tested and costed 
options upon which consultation can take place in a public sphere. Until that time, 
these options are best considered within working group and briefing sessions. For 
this reason, this public report sets out the broader situation and aspects of the 
scenarios will be tested with members of the Committee as a consultative exercise 
outside of the Committee.

4.5 A workshop will therefore take place on the rising of the Committee meeting. The 
courts recognise that such a meeting is acceptable, provided that the purpose is not 
to make any decision or exercise any delegation of powers. The purposes of such a 
workshop is to brief members on all scenarios and proposals, regardless whether 
they are fully formed, practicable or necessary in the eventual circumstance, and to 
allow Members and officers together to consider the best way to contribute to the 
development of proposals. 

4.6 Once all relevant factors are known, officers will report back to this Committee or 
directly to Policy and Resources Committee, depending on which is scheduled first, 
in order to take formed proposals forward for consideration and consultation.

Page 91



4.7 The objective od the workshop is to debate and discuss budget options considering 
the factors below: 

 Impact on residents
 Impact on the workforce
 Impact on Wirral as a place
 Level of risk
 Impact on the future ability of the area to generate income or avoid future 

costs
 Whether the service is Statutory
 Where the service is non-statutory, what beneficial outcomes it generates

4.8 Committees are encouraged to identify and submit their own ideas for proposals for 
Officers to work up, within the budget timescale at the workshop.  

4.9 Committee Members may find it helpful to rank the options numerically in providing 
feedback to the Policy and Resources Committee in December or January 
(depending on the date of the Government funding settlement) and the Committee 
will be presented with the suite of proposals for consideration for public consultation.

4.10 Where proposals are still being developed, they can be fed into the process at any 
time, through individual committees to Policy and Resources.  Members must be 
mindful however, of the Council’s obligation for public consultation where late 
proposals miss the December/January Policy and Resources deadline.

4.11 The consultation process will take around 4 weeks and updates will be presented to 
the individual committees during January and February with the outcome presented 
to the Policy & Resources Committee in February 2021 with a full budget package to 
be recommended to Full Council to set the 2021/22 budget in March 2021.

4.12 Where the Policy and Resources Committee fails to identify sufficient proposals from 
the 5 phases that have been submitted by Officers, rejects any proposals for 
implementation, and fails to identify any alternative proposals to recommend a 
balanced budget to Full Council in March, this would result in the Section 151 Officer 
issuing a Section 114 notice.  The implications of which would mean intervention by 
the Government and the appointment of external Commissioners to manage the 
Council’s finances.  As the proposals submitted to the Committees by the Officers as 
part of the 5 phases will be robust and achievable, it is likely that the external 
Commissioners would action the implementation of these.

5.0 2020/21 COMMITTEE BUDGET

5.1 The tables below indicate the 2020/21 budget for each Council Directorate and for 
each of the Committee’s.  The tables show that for the Directorate and this 
Committee the budget for 2020/21 is £106.912m.

5.2 Unlike some Directorates, the Children, Families and Education Directorate budget 
fully correlates with Children, Young People and Education Committee as all the 
Directorate functions are serviced by the one Committee.

Page 92



Directorate £m
Regeneration & Place 36.623
Neighbourhoods 60.686
Children, Families & Education 81.014
Adult Care and Health 106.912
Resources 11.477
Law & Governance 6.611
Chief Executive’s Office 1.374
Total 2020/21 Net Budget 304.697

Children, Young People and Education 
Committee

£m

Children and Families 48.806
Early Help and Prevention 12.236
Modernisation and Support 4.648
Education 6.843
Schools DSG 0.507
Reserves 0.464
Support Services Charges 7.509
Total 81.014

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no specific implications of this report as it relates to the process for the 
2021/22 budget.  The financial implications of any of the budget options will be 
included within relevant future reports. 

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The entire report concerns the duty of the Council to avoid a budget shortfall. The 
Chief Finance Officer has a personal duty under the Local Government Finance 
Act 1988 Section 114 to make a report to the executive if it appears to them that the 
expenditure of the authority incurred (including expenditure it proposes to incur) 
in a financial year is likely to exceed the resources available to it to meet that 
expenditure.  The current financial situation is at a point in time and further funding 
and flexibilities is awaited from Government to offset the budget gap.  If this is not 
sufficient to offset the forecast and no alternatives can be found, this position will be 
revisited.

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

8.1 There are no specific implications resulting from this report, however any 
implications relating to the individual budget options will be included in relevant 
future reports.

Page 93



9.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

9.1 There are no specific risks resulting from this report, however any risks relating to 
the individual budget options will be included in relevant future reports.

10.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

10.1 Informal consultation has been carried out with Members who have been kept 
appraised of the Council’s budget situation.

11.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

11.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

11.2 Any equality implications from the individual budget proposals will be included within 
Equality Impact Assessments. 

12.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

12.1 There are no specific environment or climate implications resulting from this report, 
however any implications relating to the individual budget options with regards to the 
environment or the climate, will be included in relevant future reports.

REPORT AUTHOR: Paul Boyce 
0151 666 4288 
paulboyce@wirral.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS

2020/21 Budget Report
2020/21 Quarter 1 Budget Monitoring Report

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Full Council 
Cabinet 

2 March 2020
27 July 2020

Page 94



CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE & EDUCATION COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 20 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING
REPORT OF: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR: CORPORATE OFFICE

REPORT SUMMARY

Through the development of Wirral Council’s new Governance arrangements and the 
approval of the Wirral Plan 2025 (currently being refreshed to reflect strategic priorities, as 
a result of Covid-19) the Authority has committed to developing a budget and performance 
monitoring framework, which honours the Council’s dedication to a more accountable, 
transparent way of conducting business, policy formation and decision making. 

It is proposed that the Performance Framework is modelled on the Covid Dashboard set up 
at the start of the Coronavirus pandemic. This will enable clear and accessible data to be 
presented in a timely and meaningful way.

There are a very wide range of data sets that could be included in the Dashboard, 
and it is proposed that the specific selection will be co-created with members to 
ensure it is of most relevance and benefit to members.

Aligned with this is the Wirral Plan 2025. The Plan is currently being refreshed to reflect the 
Covid-19 situation and emerging Recovery Plans. This Plan will set out what the Council 
will commit to delivering over the next 5 years. Wirral’s public services: the Wirral 
Partnership have a shared duty to improve the quality of life for residents. 

Our ambition is for:
 A prosperous, inclusive economy where local people can get good jobs and achieve 

their aspirations.
 A sustainable borough that is not only environmentally friendly but one which plays 

its part in urgently responding to the environment and climate crisis 
 Brighter futures for our young people and families – regardless of their background 

or where they live
 Safe, vibrant communities where people want to live and raise their families
 Services which help people live happy, healthy, independent, and active lives, with 

public services there to support them when they need it

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



RECOMMENDATION/S

To ensure that Governance in Wirral allows for open, transparent, and responsive decision 
making, robust performance and budget monitoring will be incorporated to ensure that the 
individual policy and service committees have sufficient oversight of these areas. 

It is recommended that discussions take place with the Committee Chair and Group 
Spokesperson in early November as part of pre-briefing meetings. These discussions will 
take forward the outcomes of the P&R Committee workshop on Performance and Budget 
reports, so that they can be further shaped for the purposes of this Committee.

Page 96



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To ensure that governance arrangements in Wirral enable open, transparent, and 
responsive decision making, robust performance and budget monitoring will be 
incorporated to ensure that the Policy and Resources Committee and the individual 
policy and service committees will have sufficient oversight of these areas.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 There are a number of options for capturing performance and budget information, 
and these will be presented to members at the workshop

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Regular monitoring of performance and the Council’s performance and budgets will 
ensure the Public have oversight and to enable Elected Members to make informed 
decisions in a timely manner. 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report 

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report 

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are none arising from this report 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The Council’s Corporate Risk Register was presented to Audit & Risk Management 
Committee in March 2020. This is currently being reviewed and aligned to the new 
committees’ priorities and objectives within this process, and to reflect the updated 
Wirral Plan and the impact of COVID-19. 

7.2 As the plan is currently being refreshed to reflect changes due to COVID-19, a new 
Performance Management Framework (PMF) is currently being developed to align 
with the refreshed plan. The PMF will be aligned to the Council’s risk management 
strategy and both will be regularly reviewed as part of corporate management 
processes.

Page 97



7.3 There are significant implications for the Council in changing its decision-making 
structure to a new form of governance, which is being launched alongside 
unprecedented financial and service pressures resulting from both the COVID-19 
pandemic and subsequent demand on services. As such, Wirral Council have had to 
re-prioritise and re-design how our services are delivered and operated. 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The priorities in the Council Plan 2025 were informed by stakeholder engagement 
carried out in 2019. 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

(a) Yes, and impact review can be found at https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-
and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The Wirral Plan 2025 includes a set of goals and objectives to create a sustainable 
environment which urgently tackles the environment emergency. These are based 
on developing and delivering plans that improve the environment for Wirral residents. 
The performance report will include information on key areas where environment and 
climate related outcomes are delivered. 

The content and/or recommendations contained within this report are expected to: - 
Reduce emissions of greenhouse gasses 

REPORT AUTHOR: Carly Brown
(Carly Brown, Assistant Director: Corporate Office)
telephone:  Tel: 0151 666 4288
email:  carlybrown@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 98

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments


SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION COMMITTEE
Tuesday 20th October 2020

REPORT TITLE: WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT SUMMARY

The Children, Young People and Education Committee, in co-operation with the other 
Policy and Service Committees, is responsible for proposing and delivering an annual 
committee work programme. This work programme should align with the corporate priorities 
of the Council, in particular the delivery of the key decisions which are within the remit of 
the Committee.   

It is envisaged that the work programme will be formed from a combination of key 
decisions, standing items and requested officer reports. This report provides the Committee 
with an opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year. The 
work programme for the Children, Young People and Education Committee is attached as 
Appendix 1 to this report.

RECOMMENDATION/S

Members are invited to note and comment on the proposed Children, Young People and 
Education Committee work programme for the remainder of the 2020/21 municipal year.

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To ensure Members of the Children, Young People and Education Committee have 
the opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 A number of workplan formats were explored, with the current framework open to 
amendment to match the requirements of the Committee.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its partners. 
The programme will be informed by: 

            The Council Plan 
 The Council’s transformation programme 
 The Council’s Forward Plan 
            Service performance information 
 Risk management information 
 Public or service user feedback 
 Referrals from Council

Terms of Reference 
 
           The Children, Young People and Education Committee is responsible for services 

which help keep children and young people safe and fulfil their potential.  It 
incorporates schools and attainment, and social care for children and families.  It has 
a particular focus on those children who are in care, and for whom the Council has 
corporate parenting responsibility. 

           The Committee is charged by full Council to undertake responsibility for:

(a) exercising management, oversight and delivery of services to children and young 
people in relation to their care, wellbeing, education or health, with the exception of 
any powers reserved to full Council; 

(b) the functions and powers conferred on or exercisable by the Council as Local 
Authority in relation to the provision of education; 

(c) working with all schools (including academies) in relation to raising standards of 
attainment and developing opportunities; 

(d) leading for the Council and its partners in the discharge the Council’s functions as 
Corporate Parent for its children in care and care leavers; 

Page 102



(e) any other functions comprised in partnership arrangements with other bodies 
connected with the delivery of services for children, young people and families; 

(f) providing a view of performance, budget monitoring and risk management in 
relation to the Committee’s functions; 

(g) undertaking the development and implementation of policy in relation to the 
Committee’s functions, incorporating the assessment of outcomes, review of 
effectiveness and formulation of recommendations to the Council, partners and other 
bodies, which shall include any decision relating to: 

 child protection; 
 children’s centres;
 education, schools and settings;
 looked after children;
 mental health services;
 safeguarding; 
 special educational needs and disability (SEND);
 youth offending services; 
 youth services; and 
 social and education transport

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 This report is for information and planning purposes only, therefore there are no 
direct financial implication arising. However, there may be financial implications 
arising as a result of work programme items.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. However, there may be 
legal implications arising as a result of work programme items.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no direct implications to Staffing, ICT or Assets.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The Committee’s ability to undertake it’s responsibility to provide strategic direction 
to the operation of the Council, make decisions on policies, co-ordinate spend, and 
maintain a strategic overview of outcomes, performance, risk management and 
budgets may be compromised if it does not have the opportunity to plan and 
regularly review its work across the municipal year.

Page 103



8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 Not applicable.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality
implications.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 This report is for information to Members and there are no direct environment and 
climate implications.

REPORT AUTHOR: Alexandra Davidson
                                      Senior Democratic Services Officer

0151 691 8381
alexandradavidson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Children, Young People and Education Committee Work Plan

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Wirral Council Constitution
Forward Plan
The Council’s Transformation Programme

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 104



CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

PROPOSED AGENDA FOR CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION 
COMMITTEE 
20th October 2020
Item Key 

Decision 
Yes/No

Lead 
Departmental 
Officer

Wirral Plan 
Priority

EARLY HELP MODEL Yes Elizabeth Hartley ‘Brighter Futures’

DOMESTIC ABUSE 
STRATEGY

Yes Elizabeth Hartley ‘Brighter Futures’

2021/22 BUDGET 
PROCESS

No Paul Boyce/Shaer 
Halewood

All

BUDGET AND 
PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING

No Carly Brown/Rachel 
Howey 

All

CHILDREN, YOUNG 
PEOPLE AND 
EDUCATION WORK 
PROGRAMME UPDATE 
REPORT

No Committee Team All

Item Key 
Decision

Approximate 
timescale 

Lead 
Departmental 
Officer  

Wirral Plan Priority

Early Help 
Model

Yes October 2020 Elizabeth 
Hartley

‘Brighter Futures’

Deadline for SLT Deadline for Cleared Reports  Agenda Published
24th September 2020 1st October 2020 12th October 2020

Page 105



Domestic 
Abuse 
Strategy

Yes October 2020 Elizabeth 
Hartley

‘Brighter Futures’

SEND 
Strategy Self-
Assessment 
Update

Yes December 
2020

Susan Talbot ‘Brighter Futures’

Protecting 
Vulnerable 
Adolescents

Yes December 
2020

Tony Kirk ‘Brighter Futures’

School Places 
Review

Yes December 
2020

Carly Brown ‘Brighter Futures’

Prudential 
Borrowing 
Family Support 
Capital Fund – 
Case N

No December 
2020

Simone White ‘Brighter Futures’

‘Cradle to 
Career’ Project 
Update

No TBC Elizabeth 
Hartley

‘Brighter Futures’

Ethical Care 
Market 
Development 
Update

No TBC Simone White ‘Brighter Futures’

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS – WAITING TO BE SCHEDULED 

Item Approximate timescale Lead Departmental 
Officer  

Service Review – 
Corporate Transformation 

TBC Paul Boyce

Care Plan Scrutiny Review 
Update

TBC Simone White

Missing from Care TBC Simone White

Care Leavers Update TBC Simone White

Advocacy Service TBC Paul Boyce

Healthy Weight TBC Paul Boyce

STANDING ITEMS AND MONITORING REPORTS  

Page 106



Item Reporting Frequency  Lead Departmental 
Officer  

Performance and Financial 
Monitoring Report

TBC Shaer Halewood/Carly 
Brown

Childrens Committee Work 
Programme Update

TBC Committee Team

Summary of Standards Twice Annually Sue Talbot

Safeguarding Partnership 
Annual Report

Annually David Robbins

Public Questions Each Meeting

WORK PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE COMMITTEE 
Item Format Timescale Lead Officer  Progress 
Working Groups/ Sub Committees

Corporate Parenting Panel TBC TBC TBC TBC
Task and Finish Reviews
- - -- -
Spotlight Sessions and Workshops
County Lines Action 
Update

Workshop 2020/21 Paul 
Boyce/Tony 
Kirk

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Early Help Model
	Enc. 1 for Early Help Model
	Enc. 2 for Early Help Model
	Enc. 3 for Early Help Model
	Enc. 4 for Early Help Model

	6 Domestic Abuse Strategy
	Enc. 1 for Domestic Abuse Strategy
	Enc. 2 for Domestic Abuse Strategy

	7 2021/22 BUDGET PROCESS
	8 Budget and Performance Monitoring
	9 Children, Young People and Education Committee Work Programme Update
	Enc. 1 for Children, Young People and Education Committee Work Programme Update


